City and County of Swansea

Notice of Meeting

Cyngor Abertawe You are invited to attend a Meeting of the
Swansea Council

BRSNS e

Scrutiny Performance Panel — Development &
Regeneration

At: Remotely via Microsoft Teams
On: Tuesday, 8 March 2022
Time: 10.00 am

Convenor: Councillor Jeff Jones

Membership:

Councillors: P M Black, P Downing, E W Fitzgerald, S J Gallagher, D W Helliwell,
T J Hennegan, C A Holley, P R Hood-Williams, L James, M H Jones, P K Jones,
S M Jones, W G Thomas and T M White

Agenda
Page No.
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests
www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests
3 Prohibition of Whipped Votes and Declaration of Party Whips
4 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 1-3
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting(s) and agree as an
accurate record.
5 Public Questions
Questions must be submitted in writing, no later than noon on the
working day prior to the meeting. Questions must relate to items on
the agenda. Questions will be dealt with in a 10-minute period.
6 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan 4 -65

Cllr Rob Stewart — Cabinet Member for Economy, Finance & Strategy
Cllr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism

Phil Holmes - Head of Planning and City Regeneration

Clare James — Economic Development Manager


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

7 Project Update Report 66 - 69
Cllr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism
Phil Holmes — Head of Planning and City Regeneration
Huw Mowbray - Development and Physical Regeneration Strategic
Manager

8 Impact of Brexit on Rural Development Programme and Funding 70 -72
Update (Post 2023)
For information only

9 Letters 73 -112

10 Annual Work Plan Review 113 -116
D

\\}‘/UN 'V{/;\A

Huw Evans

Head of Democratic Services
Tuesday, 1 March 2022

Contact: Scrutiny Officer - 01792 637257

\(/A Cyngor Abertawe
\Y Swansea Counci
:_/_ S



33

34

35

36

Agenda Item 4

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel —
Development & Regeneration

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council  Remotely via Microsoft Teams
/
Tuesday, 25 January 2022 at 11.00 am
Present: Councillor 3 W Jones (Chair) Presided
Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
P Downing E W Fitzgerald S J Gallagher
D W Helliwell T J Hennegan C A Holley
P R Hood-Williams L James M H Jones
P K Jones S M Jones T M White

Cabinet Members
Robert Francis-Davies
David Hopkins

Rob Stewart

Others

Geoff Bacon

Emily Davies

Andy Pearson
Russell Greenslade

Apologies for Absence

Cabinet Member for Investment, Regeneration & Tourism
Cabinet Member for Delivery and Operations
Cabinet Member for Economy Strategy and Finance

Head of Property Services

Scrutiny Officer

Communications and Marketing Officer
Chief Executive, Swansea BID

Councillor(s): P M Black and W G Thomas

Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests

No interests were disclosed

Prohibition of Whipped Votes and Declaration of Party Whips

No declarations were made

Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)

The Panel considered minutes from previous meetings and agreed the minutes of
the meeting on 2 November 2021 as an accurate record of the meeting.

Public Questions

Page 1



37

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Development & Regeneration (25.01.2022)

Cont'd

No questions were submitted by members of the public

Swansea Business Improvement District (BID) - Overview

The Panel received an overview presentation, submitted by Russell Greenslade,
Chief Executive of Swansea BID. Discussions focused on the following points:

Swansea BID is one of the original BIDs in the UK and the first in Wales. It
was established in August 2006, after being given a positive mandate by a
ballot of businesses/organisations in the designated BID area.

Swansea BID operates within the top 20% of BIDs in UK based on it's
performance and management.

Members queried how this performance is measured. The Panel heard that
this is calculated by an independent body of national stakeholders.

It was explained that Swansea BID is a not-for-profit private sector company
with its own board of Directors made up of Private, Public and Third sector
representatives that financially contribute towards the BID company.

It was highlighted to the Panel that the Local Authority is a key strategic
partner.

Members asked if any businesses have now withdrawn or chosen not to
contribute to the BID levy. The Panel heard that all businesses contribute,
equating to about 813 within the Swansea BID area.

Members queried the exact area covered by Swansea BID.

Members heard that many new shops that have opened are independent
retailers, demonstrating an increase in uptake in vintage clothing and ethical
retailing, linking into the student market.

National traders have also opened as well as independent traders, helping to
drive footfall.

Members queried whether any other areas outside of the central BID area
could be included. The Panel heard that, Mumbles, for example had begun to
look into setting up a separate BID prior to the pandemic.

From the BIDs view point, the Panel heard that the City Centre developments
have created a new upbeat positivity about the area and are welcomed and
supported by the City Centre business community.

Members commented on previous work of Swansea BID and the valuable
nature of the work undertaken.

The Panel remarked on the challenges faced by city centres across the
country.

The Panel heard that Swansea’s regeneration projects have been remarked
upon by the London BID, in relation to the progress and speed of projects.

It was highlighted that businesses are adapting to an increase in people living
in the City Centre, and a need to promote the night time economy.

Members queried the impact of the closures of large retailers on the city
centre trade and how this empty space will be promoted.

The Panel heard that Swansea was the first place in the UK to install
designated click and collect parking spaces in the City Centre.

Members commented positively on the idea of displays in vacant shop
windows, rather than leaving shop windows empty.

Page 2



38

39

40

41

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Development & Regeneration (25.01.2022)
Cont'd

e The Panel raised queries over whether the Marks & Spencer food store in

Mumbles had made an impact on the City Centre. It was explained that Marks
& Spencer had expected an impact and had factored this into their product
lines and operations.

Foreshore Developments - Verbal Update

The Panel heard a limited overview of the current position, in relation to the existing

Swansea Bay Strategy. It was agreed that the Panel write to the Cabinet Member

outlining specific areas of interest, a response to which could then be submitted to

the Panel in camera if appropriate.

Project Update Report

The Panel noted the report, for information.

Work Programme

The Panel noted the work programme

Letters

The meeting ended at 12.00 pm

Page 3



Agenda Iltem 6

(¢
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

NS e

Report of the Cabinet Member for Economy, Finance & Strategy

Development & Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel — 8 March 2022

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

Purpose:

Content:

Councillors are
being asked to:
Lead Councillor:

Lead Officer &
Report Author:

To brief the Scrutiny Panel on the Regional Economic Delivery
Plan for South West Wales

A briefing on the new South West Wales Regional Economic
Delivery Plan that will replace the 2013 Swansea Bay City Region
Economic Regeneration Strategy as the council’'s economic
regeneration policy.

Consider the information provided and give views

Councillor Rob Stewart, Cabinet Member for Economy, Finance
& Strategy

Phil Holmes

Tel: 01792 636979

E-mail: phillip.holmes@swansea.gov.uk

1. Introduction

1.1 It has been eight years since the publication of the Swansea Bay City
Region Economic Regeneration Strategy in 2013, and the economic and
policy context has changed considerably at the Welsh and UK level since
then, particularly in light of the UK’s decision to leave the European Union
and the impact of the covid-19 pandemic. In addition, the regional
landscape is changing with the advent of the new Corporate Joint
Committees, and the preparation of new Regional Economic Frameworks
by Welsh Government that set out visions and high level priorities for each
region in Wales.

1.2 To respond to changing circumstances, the four local authorities in South
West Wales, in partnership with Welsh Government, commissioned SQW
to produce a new Regional Economic Delivery Plan (REDP). This will
replace the previous Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration

Strategy.

Page 4




1.3

14

15

1.6

2.1

2.2

The REDP commission included:

¢ A thorough analysis of the evidence base on the region’s economy,
labour market and infrastructure to determine its strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities and threats

e Interpretation of the strategic policy context at local, regional and
national level

e Development of detailed strategic aims and objectives that respond to
the economic opportunities for the region and complement the shared
regional vision as articulated in the Regional Economic Framework

e Preparation of Regional Economic Delivery Plan that includes actions
that need to be taken to achieve the vision and objectives

The Regional Economic Delivery Plan is attached at Appendix A

The REDP complements the new Welsh Government Regional Economic
Framework (REF) and provides a further layer of detail below the REF,
outlining the objectives and actions that will deliver against the high level
vision in the REF.

The REDP sets out an ambitious ‘route map’ for the development of the
region’s economy over the next ten years, identifying priorities for
intervention and setting out how business, government, education,
voluntary/ community organisations, social enterprises and other partners
can work together to bring them forward.

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

The REDP identifies that South West Wales has a diverse economy and
a unique set of natural and cultural assets, underpinned by the quality of
its coastal and rural environment, industrial heritage and university
presence.

The economic analysis shows:

¢ In the years leading up to the Covid-19 pandemic, the South West
Wales economy performed strongly in generating new jobs: by 2019,
there were 322,000 jobs in the region, an impressive increase of
20,000 on the 2013 figure.

e The productivity gap with the rest of the UK has narrowed slightly over
time but is still substantial, with regional productivity (GVA per filled
job) standing at 80% of the UK level in 2018.

e Economic activity rates in South West Wales have improved at a faster
pace than the rest of the UK over the past 15 years, but the rate
continues to fall behind the UK average: the economic activity rate in
South West Wales was 73.8% in 2018, compared with 78.9% across
the UK.

e There has been a steady improvement in qualification levels with 35%
of the working age population qualified to NVQ level 4+ (degree level)
compared to 22% in 2004, and the proportion with no qualifications
has halved over the same period, but in relative terms there is a still a
gap with the rest of the UK

Page 5



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

e The business base grew in the years leading up to the pandemic but
the number of enterprises relative to the working age population
(enterprise density) and start up rates remain lower than the rest of the
UK.

e There is a widely recognised gap between demand and supply for
industrial premises, with low rental levels affecting the viability of
private sector led developments.

e Across the region concentrations of disadvantage are significant,
principally in the urban centres of Swansea, Llanelli, Neath, Port
Talbot, Pembroke Dock and upper Western Valleys.

Overall, the review of economic performance suggests good progress over
recent years, especially in terms of job creation, but there is a persistent
gap in outcomes between the region and the rest of the UK. This reflects
the ‘structural’ nature of many of the region’s challenges linked to the long-
term processes of industrial change (which in some respects are still
ongoing), and are shared with other regions in Wales and the UK.

The review has also identified a series of distinctive strengths and
opportunities in South West Wales, especially linked with the region’s
energy potential (particularly green energy and the net zero opportunity),
university-industrial links, strong cultural identity, environmental assets
and quality of life offer. The REDP aims to build on these distinctive
regional strengths and opportunities to develop a more prosperous and
resilient South West Wales economy.

Unlike the previous Economic Regeneration Strategy, which was
predominantly focused on improving productivity, the REDP recognises
that ‘Transformational’ growth opportunities need to be balanced with the
conditions for incremental improvements in resilience, capacity and
capability across the whole of the economy. This was a key theme that
emerged from consultation with regional partners during the preparation of
the Plan. While there are distinctive opportunities to pursue at the ‘leading
edge’, long-term employment resilience and wage growth is going to
depend on the sustainability, productivity and expansion of the wider stock
of regional businesses.

To help plan for the future, the REDP sets out three ‘Ambitions’ which set
out the nature of the South West Wales economy that we want to work
towards. These are:

e Resilient and sustainable

e Enterprising and ambitious

e Balanced and inclusive

The ambitions are supported by three complementary Missions, which will
guide activity over the next ten years:

Page 6



2.8

2.9

2.10

3.1

e Mission 1 — Establishing South West Wales as a UK leader in
renewable energy and the development of a net zero economy: Taking
forward the region’s major energy related projects and driving the
benefits through the region (via industrial decarbonisation, supply
chain opportunities, university-linked innovation, etc.).

e Mission 2 — Building a strong, resilient and embedded business base:
Understanding and growing the business stock, supporting
widespread social and commercial entrepreneurship, creating
stronger supply chain and innovation networks, making public sector
support sustainable; driving forward technology adoption and
diffusion.

e Mission 3 — Growing and sustaining the ‘experience’ offer: Linking
environmental quality, quality of life and community character to create
a region that retains and attracts talent and investment, and to promote
this consistently and powerfully to the outside world

The REDP sets out some initial key action areas to deliver against the
ambitions and missions. These actions will form the basis of a ‘living’ action
plan document that will be regularly reviewed by regional partners and will
evolve to embrace new investment proposals as they emerge.

The REDP was approved by Cabinet on January 20™ and will become the
Council’s over-arching economic regeneration policy document to replace
the 2013 Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy. The
REDP is also going through the approvals process in the other local
authorities in South West Wales.

The new Regional Economic Delivery Plan will be owned and overseen by
the new South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee (CJC). Once the
CJC is formally constituted, it is proposed that the REDP will be presented
for adoption as the regional strategy for economic wellbeing. Supporting
the CJC, the Regional Regeneration Directors will keep track of progress
and will be responsible for developing business cases, securing
investment and ensuring delivery on the CJC’s behalf.

Integrated Assessment Implications

The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and
the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the
exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

o Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Acts.

o Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.

o Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-

economic disadvantage

Page 7



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

o Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language

o Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

o Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that
public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development.
Sustainable development means the process of improving the economic,
social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in
accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at
achieving the ‘well-being goals’.

Our Integrated Impact Assessment (lIA) process ensures we have paid
due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues and
priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community cohesion,
carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC)
and Welsh language.

An Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) screening has been completed and
is attached at Appendix B. This tool confirms that a full IIA is not
required on the Regional Economic Delivery Plan.

The REDP sets the strategic direction for economic regeneration
regionally and locally over the next ten years. The REDP aims to create
an economy that is resilient and sustainable; enterprising and ambitious;
and balance and inclusive. It is expected to have a positive impact on
people and communities in Swansea by improving economic performance
and creating sustainable employment opportunities.

In line with the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty, due
regard will be given to the impact on protected groups in the development
and delivery of all the actions that flow from the REDP. All actions will be
screened and full l11As will be undertaken if appropriate in the future as the
actions progress.

Financial Implications

There are no immediate and direct implications arising from this report.
Any actions stemming from the Regional Economic Delivery plan will need
to identify the nature, timing and design of any programmes or projects
and the resulting costs and funding prior to any investment decisions being
made.

Council specific future costs will continue to fall to each Council to consider
and fund as part of the usual budget management and investment decision
making process. Aspects of the wider regional work and some of the future
potential funding solutions will fall to the CJC which has revenue levying
powers on the constituent Councils of the CJC and thus ultimately still
become an individual charge on Council budgets.

Page 8



5. Legal Implications

5.1 There are no specific legal implications at this stage.

Background Papers:

Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy
Welsh Government South West Wales Regional Economic Framework: South-
west Wales regional economic framework (gov.wales)

Appendices:
Appendix A South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan
Appendix B Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Page 9


https://www.swansea.gov.uk/swanseabaycityregioneconomicregenerationstrategy
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-12/south-west-wales-regional-economic-framework.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-12/south-west-wales-regional-economic-framework.pdf

September 2021

South West Wales Regional

Economic Delivery Plan




Contents

EXECUNIVE SUMIMIAIY.......oiieieteeccteeectte et eee e e e s s sate s e s ssaa e sssasaaessssaaessssaasssssaassssssasessssasssssseaean 1
1. INHOAUCTION .ttt ettt e sttt ssasssae s b s saesae st enns 4
2. South West Wales: The economic IaNdSCAPEe ..........ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccreececeeeeessreeeesssseeesssesaeenns 8
3. Our ambitions 10 2030 .........ccceviiiiiiiiiiiiiniiin e saesane 22
4. Mission 1: A UK leader in renewable energy and the net zero economy............................ 25
5. Mission 2: Building a strong, resilient and embedded business base................cccceeueennneen. 30
6. Mission 3: Growing and sustaining the South West Wales ‘experience’ offer........................ 35
7. Moving forward: Delivering the PION..............oo ittt scareeessse s e s eaeeseanes 39

S QW Page 11 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



Executive Summary

Background

1. South West Wales has a diverse economy and a unique set of natural and cultural assets,
underpinned by the quality of its coastal and rural environment, industrial heritage and
capacity and university presence. In 2014, partners in South West Wales jointly published an
Economic Regeneration Strategy, setting the strategic groundwork for the Swansea Bay City
Deal, a £1.3 billion investment package supported by the UK and Welsh Governments.

2. Seven years on, much has been achieved. However, there is more to be done to unlock the
region’s potential and to ensure that growth is resilient, sustainable and inclusive. In
December 2020, the South West Wales local authorities, working closely with the Welsh
Government, commissioned a new Regional Economic Delivery Plan. Looking ahead to the
next ten years, this sets out an ambitious ‘route map’ for the development of the region’s
economy, identifying priorities for intervention and articulating how business, government,
education, voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations and other partners
should work together to bring them forward.

The economic and policy context

3. Intheyears leading up to the Covid-19 pandemic, the South West Wales economy performed
strongly in generating new jobs: By 2019, there were some 322,000 jobs in the region, an
impressive increase of 20,000 on the 2013 figure. However, there is still a large and persistent
productivity gap with the rest of the UK.

4. Analysis of the region’s economy highlights that:

e The region’s economic weaknesses are largely structural, linked with long-term
processes of industrial change (which in some respects are still ongoing), and are shared
with other regions in Wales and the UK.

e However, the region has a series of distinctive strengths and opportunities. These
are especially linked with the region’s energy potential, university-industrial links, strong
cultural identity, environmental assets and quality of life offer..

e There is a ‘window of opportunity’ to build on and capture some of these, especially
in relation to the green energy and net zero opportunity, where the region has specific
advantages, but where other parts of the UK (and beyond) also have ambitious plans and
technology and the dynamics of investment are changing rapidly. Having the capacity to
exploit these opportunities will be important and the timing of this matters greatly.

e The region contains much diversity, especially within the rural/ urban dimension.
Despite diversity across the region, there is substantial commonality, and some of the big
opportunities have a region-wide footprint. However, some of them extend beyond the

S QW Page 12 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



region itself, and ‘out-of-region’ links (for example, the South Wales Industrial Cluster and
the links through to Cardiff Capital Region) will be of relevance.

e ‘Transformational’ growth opportunities need to be balanced with the conditions
for incremental improvements in resilience, capacity and capability across the
economy. This was a key theme emerging from consultation as part of this Plan. There
are distinctive opportunities at the ‘leading edge’ — but long-term employment resilience
and wage growth will depend on the sustainability, productivity and expansion of the
wider stock of regional SMEs.

5. The Plan has also been developed against the backdrop of a rapidly evolving policy context,
as the region recovers from the Covid-19 pandemic and adjusts to a new trading and funding
landscape following Brexit. However, looking to the next ten years, the climate emergency,
the pace of (and adaption to) technology change and the need to ensure that the benefits are
captured locally and are widely distributed will be central to economic strategy.

Our Ambitions and Missions for the next ten years

6. Over the next ten years, we will build on our distinctive strengths and opportunities
summarised above to develop a more prosperous and resilient South West Wales economy.

7. To help plan for the future, we have identified three Ambitions (statements about the nature
of the South West Wales economy that we want to work towards), supporting three
complementary Missions:

Figure 1: Our strategic framework
>) T

Resilient Enterprising
and and
sustainable ambitious

Balanced and
inclusive Mission 3

Source: SQW 2021

S QW Page 13 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



8.  Our three ‘Missions’ will guide future activity over the next ten years and beyond. They are
designed to give a clear direction of travel, while remaining sufficiently broad to
accommodate a wide range of potential investments that will come forward over time. The
three high-level Missions are as follows:

e Establishing South West Wales as a UK leader in renewable energy and the
development of a net zero economy: Taking forward the region’s major energy related
projects and driving the benefits through the region (via industrial decarbonisation,
supply chain opportunities, university-linked innovation, etc.).

e Building a strong, resilient and embedded business base: Understanding and growing
the business stock, supporting widespread social and commercial entrepreneurship,
creating stronger supply chain and innovation networks, making public sector support
sustainable; driving forward technology adoption and diffusion.

e Growing and sustaining the ‘experience’ offer: Linking environmental quality, quality
of life and community character to create a region that retains and attracts talent and
investment, and to promote this consistently and powerfully to the outside world.

Delivering the Plan

9. To translate our Missions into practical interventions, we have prepared a project pipeline.
This sets out a schedule of interventions, describing how they contribute to our Ambitions
and Missions, their current development status and the actions that need to be taken to bring
them forward. This will be kept ‘live’: it will regularly be reviewed by regional partners and
will evolve to embrace new investment proposals as they emerge.

10. Currently, the projects within the pipeline have a combined value of around £3 billion. While
some are at an early stage of development, and costs will be determined through the business
case process, this gives an indication of the scale of the opportunity ahead. Building on the
success of the current Swansea Bay City Deal, we will pursue the creation of a further, flexible
Investment Fund to co-invest alongside the private sector in projects that will deliver our
Missions, where business cases are robust.

11. To oversee the strategic direction of the Plan, a new South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee (CJC) has been established, enabling the four local authorities to work closely
together alongside the Welsh Government and to share resources. Building on our recent
success, and alive to the immediacy of our current challenges and opportunities, the CJC will
drive forward our Delivery Plan - building a South West Wales that is “resilient and
sustainable; enterprising and ambitious; and balanced and inclusive”.

S QW Page 14 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



1. Introduction

Welcome to the Regional Economic Delivery Plan for South West Wales. Looking
ahead to 2030, this Plan sets out our ambitions for a resilient, broad-based and

sustainable economy - and outlines where we will focus our efforts in the next few
years to realise them.

Infroducing South West Wales

1.1 Extending from Neath Port Talbot in the east to Pembrokeshire in the west, via Swansea and
Carmarthenshire, South West Wales has a diverse economy and a unique set of natural and

cultural assets.

1.2 Economically, our industrial heritage combines with some of the UK’s most significant marine
energy potential, driving major opportunities for decarbonisation and the growth of the UK’s
Green Economy. Environmentally, the coastline and countryside - including the
Pembrokeshire Coast and Brecon Beacons National Parks and the Gower Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty - contribute to a superb visitor offer and quality of life. Culturally, the region
encompasses the dynamic, growing university city of Swansea, a diverse and distinctive
network of rural towns and an increasingly vibrant Welsh language.

Figure 1-1: South West Wales in context

Legend e
[ South West Wales Hlow Gus

National Park

AONB i u

= M4 Motorway %
— A4SIAL0 /
- A465 2 > %
- - - Railway Fishguard

s + Pembroke e " "
Dock AT : Boe Coergyrod L!anelll

B YTl / Carmarthen B: %’: -

//////’//// wanse

Y Bort #
Contans OS data © Crown Copynic bt and database right 2020™

LiardBud F aw

Source: Produced by SQW 2021. Licence 100030994. Contains OS data © Crown copyright [and database right] (2020)

S QW Page 15 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



A bold and inclusive new economic delivery plan

1.3 In 2014, partners in South West Wales jointly published an Economic Regeneration
Strategy, setting the strategic groundwork for the Swansea Bay City Deal, a £1.3 billion
investment package supported by the UK and Welsh Governments.

1.4 Seven years on, much has been achieved. The region’s knowledge and research capacity has
been supported through the delivery of major facilities such as the Swansea Bay Campus and
continued investment in industry-academic links. The economic opportunities associated
with the growth of the health economy have been reinforced through the development of the
new Institute of Life Sciences and the start of work on the Pentre Awel health and wellbeing
campus in Llanelli. S4C’s new headquarters has opened in Carmarthen, accompanied by a
concentration of creative media businesses; substantial investment has continued to flow into
Pembrokeshire’s offshore renewable opportunities; and Swansea city centre’s ambitious
regeneration programme is well underway. There has been major investment in our digital
connectivity, with exciting plans for a more sustainable regional transport system through
Swansea Bay and South West Wales Metro.

1.5 This provides a strong platform for future growth. However, as the analysis in Chapter 2
makes clear, there is more to be done to unlock the region’s potential and to ensure that
growth is resilient, sustainable and inclusive. Looking to the next ten years and beyond, the
South West Wales local authorities, working closely with the Welsh Government, have
prepared this Regional Economic Delivery Plan to ensure that we make the most of the
exciting growth opportunities that are ahead of us.

Combining strategic clarity with delivery flexibility

1.6 Indeveloping the Plan, we have followed a sequential approach. First, we started with a fresh
view of the evidence, considering the ‘state of the region’ and the outlook for the future. This
informed our high-level objectives, setting out “what we want our economy to be (more) like”.
These provided a framework for a series of clearly-defined missions: key areas of focus for
the next ten years, and the interventions, or project activities, needed to achieve them:

Figure 1-2: Regional Economic Delivery Plan logic sequence

Whatis the context in What do we want our What should our key What actions we need
which the Plan is being economy to be like? ) areas of focus be? ) to take?
developed?

Source: SQW

1.7 However, we live an uncertain and dynamic world, and over the lifetime of this Plan, we will
need to respond to new challenges and opportunities (and new ideas and investments that
are yet unforeseen). A resilient plan is a flexible and agile plan: while this document

S QW Page 16 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



provides strategic clarity and focus on our priorities, we anticipate that project actions and
investments will evolve over time.

Navigating the changing strategic context

1.8 This Plan is developed in the context of (and contributes to) a range of plans and strategies
developed at local, national and UK level. Looking across the strategic landscape, a number of
themes are especially relevant to this Plan:

e First, the Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 requires public bodies in Wales
to consider the long-term impact of their decisions across all aspects of wellbeing. The Act
outlines seven ‘wellbeing goals’ - and public policy should contribute to all of them, not
just one or two. For an economic plan, that means that in delivering “a prosperous region”,
we should also contribute to a region that is more resilient, equal, healthy, cohesive and
globally responsible, and which enjoys a vibrant culture and Welsh language!. The
principles of the Act are explicitly embedded in the Welsh Government’s Economic
Resilience and Reconstruction Mission? (and its principles of “Prosperous, Green and
Equal”) and are central to this Delivery Plan.

e Second, there is an overarching and firm commitment to decarbonisation and the
achievement of ‘net zero’ by 2050. The UK and Welsh Government is legally committed
to net zero carbon emissions (over a 1990 baseline) by 2050, a process that will involve
far-reaching changes in industrial processes, transport networks and heating systems.
The Welsh Government’s Programme for Government commits to “acting decisively to
tackle the nature and climate emergency”3, and this is reinforced in the establishment of
the Minister of Climate Change portfolio and (for example) in the clear prioritisation of
sustainable and active travel within Liwybr Newydd, the new transport strategy. From an
economic strategy perspective, the decarbonisation imperative creates opportunities for
innovation and technology development, as well as an urgent need for adaptation to
support industrial resilience.

e Third, a broader policy focus on the opportunities and challenges presented by
technological and demographic change featured in the UK Government's former
Industrial Strategy and remains prominent in its successor, the Plan for Growth. A series
of reports to the Welsh Government have also set out approaches to digitalisation* and
the adoption of an innovation strategy focused around meeting societal need>.

e Fourth, the response to the UK’s exit from the European Union. Over the coming years,
we will need to adapt to changing patterns of trade. The impact of this is not yet fully

! Future Generations Commissioner for Wales, Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015

2 Welsh Government (February 2021), Our Economic Resilience and Reconstruction Mission

3 Welsh Government (June 2021), Programme for Government, p.3

4+ Welsh Government (September 2019), Wales 4.0: Delivering economic transformation for a better

future of work

5 Rick Delbridge, Dylan Henderson and Kevin Morgan (May 2021), Scoping the future of innovation
policy in Wales

S QW Page 17 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



apparent, although for some sectors will be far-reaching (for example, the adaption of
agriculture to the new Environmental Land Management system). Brexit also means a
significant change for South West Wales in terms of the public investment available for
economic development: historically, the region has been one of the UK’s largest
beneficiaries from EU funding. Looking to the future, it is likely that we will need a new,
perhaps more ‘investment and return’ based approach.

e Finally, this Plan is developed in the context of a wider approach to regional economic
development in Wales, with South West Wales forming one of the regional ‘building
blocks’ of Future Wales, the new national spatial development plan®. Plans have also been
advanced for new approaches to regional governance and delivery (described in Chapter
5), as well as the Regional Economic Framework, which has been developed by the Welsh
Government in conjunction with the local authorities alongside this Plan.

Plan structure

1.9 The remainder of this Plan is structured in six chapters:

e Chapter 2 sets out the economic landscape within which the Plan has been developed,
outlining the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats facing the regional
economy and the key issues that need to be addressed.

e Chapter 3 introduces our strategic framework, setting out our ambitions for the future
and the type of economy that we want to help develop.

e Building on this, Chapters 4-6 explain our three key ‘missions’: the specific goals that we
want to achieve over the next decade.

e Finally, Chapter 7 sets out how we will deliver the Plan, including the role of the
Corporate Joint Committee and options for future implementation arrangements.

1.10 In addition, Annex A provides a summary SWOT analysis. Annex B provides an assessment
of this Plan against the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015. Annex C explains
the process of developing the Plan, and how partners were engaged and priorities identified.

1.11 Two supplementary documents support the Plan:

e First, an Evidence and Policy Landscape Review provides further detail in support of
the narrative in Chapter 2

Second, while this Plan takes a long-term view, specific actions will evolve over time as
business cases are progressed and new investment opportunities come forward.
Alongside the Plan, we have prepared a supplementary Project Pipeline document,
setting out known and emerging interventions and the next steps involved in taking them
forward.

6 Welsh Government (February 2021), Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

S QW Page 18 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



2. South West Wales: The economic landscape

South West Wales has performed strongly in recent years in generating new jobs and
driving forward priority investments. Despite continuing productivity challenges,
there are major opportunities ahead for sustainable growth, linked with our energy,

innovation, business and community assets. This chapter sketches a picture of the
region’s economy, outlining recent economic performance, key strengths and assets,
and the major ‘transformational’ trends that will impact on future growth.

Places and connections: The region’s economic geography

A distinctive heritage and a diverse economy...

2.1 With a population of around 705,000 across four counties, South West Wales is a diverse
region. Historically, much of the area was an industrial pioneer, driven initially by the coal
and metals industries and later by petrochemicals and manufacturing. Over the past 40 years,
economic change has meant a challenging period of readjustment, which is to some extent
still underway. But our industrial heritage has bequeathed an important legacy, including
some of our leading research and innovation capabilities, our large advanced manufacturing
sector and the character and form of our towns and cities.

2.2 Reflecting the region’s population distribution and historic industrial development, the
largest concentrations of employment are in the east, around Swansea Bay, as Figure 2-1
illustrates. Swansea itself accounts for around 40% of jobs in South West Wales (and is its
main commuter destination), and the area around Swansea Bay and Llanelli is defined in
Future Wales as a ‘National Growth Area’ for new jobs and housing’. The east of the region
also contains a distinctive and extensive concentration of manufacturing activity at Port
Talbot, including the UK’s largest steel plant and the Port Talbot Waterway Enterprise Zone.

2.3 Further west, around 20% of national energy supplies enter Britain via Pembrokeshire, with
the Haven Waterway a major centre for existing energy infrastructure and the exploitation of
new opportunities. More broadly, Carmarthen and Haverfordwest have important roles as
regional centres, supporting an extensive rural economy and food production industry.
Reflecting the environmental quality highlighted in Chapter 1, the region enjoys extensive
environmental designations, including the two National Parks and AONB and special
protections along much of the coast. This environmental quality supports a large, important

7 Welsh Government (February 2021), Future Wales: The National Plan 2040, Policy 28. Policy 29
defines Carmarthen and the Haven Towns (Haverfordwest, Milford Haven, Pembroke and Pembroke
Dock) as ‘Regional Growth Areas’

S QW Page 19 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



and growing visitor economy as well as delivering significant wellbeing benefits to our local
residents.

Figure 2-1: Major concentrations of employment

L‘Hauzrﬁumwut \\JI
11,300 jobs
’ gzt

& ,

- fr'
il

Milford Hawen/

Number of Employees (2019)
0 to 500

501 to 1,000
+1,001 to 1,500
= 1,501 to 3,000

Central fwansea
38,000 jobs

Baglan/ lersey Marine |
15,000 jobs

Port Talbot) Margam

24

25

SQwW

19,300 jobs

=-=3,000 +
Source: Produced by SQW 2021. Licence 100030994 Contains 0S data © Crown copyright [and database right] [2020]

Across the region, around 208,000 people speak Welsh - about 31% of the total population,
and an increase of around 23% in the decade to 20208. The Welsh Government’s Cymraeg
2050 strategy sets out a positive strategy to develop “a thriving, sustainable economy in rural
areas” and to promote the Welsh language through the media and the growth of the cultural
sector - a goal recently reinforced by investment in S4C’s headquarters presence in
Carmarthen.

... with important links beyond the region

Connections beyond the region are important too. The ports at Fishguard and Pembroke Dock
provide the main gateway between the south of the UK and Ireland. Looking east, there are
strong links (and important commuter flows) between the manufacturing clusters at Port
Talbot and neighbouring Bridgend; shared issues across the Western and Central Valleys and
the South Wales industrial base; and relatively easy access to opportunities in Cardiff and
beyond. While our Plan focuses on what is needed for the region and within the region,

8 Reflecting the region’s diversity, the proportion of Welsh speakers is substantially higher in
Carmarthenshire, at over 50% of the population.

Page 20

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



10

economic boundaries are fluid: the key point is that South West Wales is not self-contained
and homogeneous; it is outward facing and diverse, and it makes sense to work together.

The medium-term economic outlook

2.6 This Plan has been developed following the substantial economic shock precipitated by the
Covid-19 pandemic. The UK economy contracted by 9.9% in 2020 - an unprecedented fall in
annual output in modern times - as public health restrictions effectively closed some sectors
(notably hospitality, a key industry in South West Wales). Across the region, the claimant
count was 74% higher in December 2020 than it had been at the start of the year, with the full
employment impact mitigated by the furlough scheme and the extensive series of business
grant, loan and rates relief measures brought in by the Welsh and UK Governments.

2.7 Atthe time of writing, the outlook for economic recovery from the pandemic is positive.
In July 2021, independent forecasters anticipated UK GDP growth of 6.9% in 2021 and 5.5%
in 2022, sufficient to restore the economy to its pre-pandemic size?. In South West Wales, the
percentage of employments furloughed fell from 12.5% in December 2020 to around 5% in
June 202119, the claimant count had started to fall, and many employers were reporting staff
shortages.

2.8 However, the pandemic has accelerated disruptive trends that are likely to have longer-term
impacts. Structural changes in the retail sector have impacted on town and city centre uses.
Remote working has expanded and is likely to become more permanent - presenting
opportunities for people to access a wider range of jobs, but also potentially creating
additional housing and service delivery pressures in rural and coastal areas. At the time of
writing, the Covid crisis has not come to a conclusion and its consequences are still not yet
fully known - but they are likely to have a longer-term influence over the period of this Plan.

The state of the region: Recent economic performance

2.9 Looking back over a longer period, the regional economy has grown since the previous
Economic Regeneration Strategy was prepared. But on many indicators, there is still a
significant gap between outcomes in South West Wales and the rest of the UK. The Economic
and Strategic Landscape Review which accompanies this Plan explores our recent economic
performance in more detail: the following paragraphs provide a snapshot of the ‘state of the
region’.

We have seen growth in jobs and economic activity, but there is capacity for more

2.10 The 2014 Strategy anticipated a relatively slow recovery in employment terms from the
recession following the 2008/09 financial crisis. However, performance has been much

9 HM Treasury (July 2021), Forecasts for the UK Economy: A comparison of independent forecasts
10 Slightly below the Wales and UK averages, and accounting for around 14,400 employments
furloughed.

S QW Page 21 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



11

stronger than anticipated. By 2019, there were some 322,000 jobs in the region, an increase
0f 20,000 on the 2013 figure. Despite some net job losses in 2016, growth until the start of the
pandemic was stronger than in the rest of Wales.

2.11 However, there is still ‘spare capacity’ in the labour market. Although the ‘jobs density’
(the number of jobs per working age resident) has grown steadily, it is still lower than the UK
and Wales averages!!l. Notably, despite Swansea’s importance as a regional centre and
inbound commuter destination, the city’s jobs density is low relative to Cardiff and Newport!2.

2.12 There have been steady improvements in the economic activity rate over the past 15 years -
at a faster pace than in the rest of the UK. However, South West Wales’ economic activity
rate continues to fall behind the UK average (and slightly behind the Wales average). If the
gap between the 2019 regional economic activity rate (73.8%) and the UK rate (78.9%) could
be bridged, it would bring an additional 21,000 people back into the labour market.

Economic output has grown, within the context of structural change

2.13 Economic output (measured in gross value added) was around £13 billion in 2018 -
equivalent to 21% of total Welsh output. The region’s GVA increased by around £630 million
in 2013-18 (representing growth of about 5% over the period). Within this overall expansion,
some sectors grew strongly: combined, wholesale and retail; warehousing; real estate;
information and communications; and health and care contributed an additional £689 million
to GVA. But some sectors contracted over the period, with the metals, electrical products and
machinery sector reducing its output by around £322 million.

2.14 This suggests a continuing process of adjustment within the economy, which is also reflected
in employment growth (and a strengthening share of employment) in hospitality, health,
distribution and administrative activities. Nevertheless, manufacturing is of fundamental
importance to the regional economy, accounting for 13.6% of total output (and over 25% of
outputin Neath Port Talbot).

There is still a large productivity gap, which impacts on local prosperity

2.15 Productivity (the amount of GVA generated for every filled job) was around £45,100 in South
West Wales in 2018. The gap with the rest of the UK has narrowed slightly over time. But it is
still substantial: in 2018, productivity was around 80% of the UK level.

2.16 Our analysis of productivity in South West Wales leads to three observations, which are
critical to the strategy advanced within this Plan:

e Productivity growth isn’t ‘everything’.... But it is necessary for long-term economic
wellbeing, even if it isn’t sufficient. More ‘productive’ activities ought to lead to higher

11 (.75 jobs per resident aged 16-64 in South West Wales in 2019 (compared with 0.77 in Wales
overall and 0.86 in the UK).
12 Swansea’s jobs density was 0.8 in 2019, compared with 0.98 in Cardiff and 0.91 in Newport.

S QW Page 22 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



12

average pay!3 and more opportunities for people to build careers and businesses in the
region. But productivity can be seen as a somewhat abstract measure: a highly
‘productive’ economy might not necessarily be a sustainable or equitable one, and not
everything that society values generates high levels of monetised output. So, as well as
generating higher output per worker, the key challenge is ensuring that the
productivity gain is captured locally in pay, conditions and business opportunities.

* Productivity growth is g e 2 2: Productivity: GVA per filled job (£), 2010-
not just about growing 18

‘more productive’
sectors, or those firms at 60,000
. 2010:
the leading edge. The 55,000 77% of UK
structural shift in South
50,000

West Wales from relatively

2015:

high value-added 45,000 78% of UK /

manufacturing to lower 40,000

value services has / 2018:
80% of UK

35,000
presented a long-term

challenge. Part of the gap is 30,000
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

also explained by the type

Lo o SOUth We'st Wales e \Wales e UK
of activities that take place

i . i ONS, Subregional productivity: labour productivity by local authority district and
In different locations labour productivity by UK NUTS2 and NUTS3 subregions, 2010-18
within the same industry -

with headquarters activities, research and development and so on typically contributing
to higher value output per worker!4. But recent research also highlights the gains that can
be made in all sectors (including those within the ‘foundational economy’ as well as within
‘export’-like industries) through investment in management capacity, technology
adoption, supply chain capabilities, skills development and so on!s. This is likely to be
especially important in South West Wales: in a region with relatively few large firms, a
broad-based approach that supports SME growth and entrepreneurship across the

board and increases the local ‘stickiness’ of investment is likely to be important.

e Productivity growth is likely to be gradual over time. It may be accelerated by major
transformational investments - but ‘narrowing the gap’, and ensuring the gain is captured
regionally in higher pay and local business growth, is a long-term endeavour, demanding
sustained investment across the economy!e.

13 Currently, gross median pay in the South West Wales local authority areas ranges between 86%
and 92% of the UK average.

14 Welsh Government (2018), Welsh Budget 2018: Chief Economist’s Report, p.12

15 Jurgen Maier (2017), Made Smarter Review: Report to the UK Government; Institute for Government
(2021), Productivity: Firing on all cylinders — why restoring growth is a matter for every UK sector

16 Note also the challenges in ‘narrowing the gap’: other regions will also grow at the same time, and
some (principally London and the Greater South East) will have more favourable starting-points.

S QW Page 23 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



13

The evidence reveals mixed progress against wider drivers of productivity

2.17 Linked with the region’s overall productivity performance, there has been mixed progress in
relation to wider ‘drivers of productivity’:

In relation to skills...

2.18 Recent years have seen a strong emphasis on strengthening links between providers and
employers, with the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership playing an increasingly
important role in brokering relationships, identifying employer need and providing better
labour market intelligence?”.

2.19 Over time, there has been a steady improvement in qualification levels: in 2019, 35% of
the working age population was qualified to NVQ4+, compared with 22% in 2004, and the
proportion with no qualifications halved over the same period (partly as new entrants to the
labour market gradually replace those who leave). But in relative terms, there is still a gap
with the rest of the UK!8, and substantial variation across the region?°.

In relation to connectivity...

2.20 There has been transformational progress in the delivery of digital connectivity since
the 2014 Regeneration Strategy. Commercial investment and public support through
Superfast Cymru and successor programmes have increased access to superfast broadband
to over 90% of premises. However, beyond superfast, there is still a still a significant rural/
urban digital divide, with ultrafast penetration in Pembrokeshire among the lowest in the
UK?20. The Digital Infrastructure programme across South West Wales aims to address this -
but applications for new technology continue to advance rapidly: staying ahead of the curve
will be important as digital technology transforms working practices and business models.

2.21 The picture is perhaps less positive in relation to transport connectivity. There has been
some disappointment in the scaling back of plans to electrify the South Wales Mainline to
Swansea. However, proposals are being advanced to take forward the Swansea Bay and
South Wales Metro as the core of a better-integrated regional transport system (highlighted
further in Chapter 4); Transport for Wales plans to increase services between Swansea and
Manchester from 2022; and work progresses in taking forward active travel measures across
the region. While the future policy presumption is against new strategic road schemes,
investment has started on much-needed improvements to the A40 in Pembrokeshire and

17 See South West Wales RLSP (2019), Regional Employment and Skills Plan 2019

18 Between 2004 and 2019, the gap between South West Wales and the UK actually widened, from
3.6pp to 4.8pp.,

19 For example, in 2019, only 29% of the Neath Port Talbot 16-64 population was qualified to NVQ4+,
compared with 37% in Swansea.

20 [n September 2020, around 77% and 58% of premises in Swansea and Neath Port Talbot
respectively were able to access ‘ultrafast’ download speeds of up to 300 Mbps, although this is
largely confined to urban areas where it is commercially viable.

S QW Page 24 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



14

beyond the region, major improvements on the A465 Heads of the Valleys road are improving
connectivity with the English Midlands.

In relation to the business stock...

2.22 The size of the region’s business base grew in the years leading up to the start of the
pandemic. In 2020, there were around 23,800 active enterprises in South West Wales, a
number that had steadily increased over the preceding five years - and survival rates keep
pace with the rest of Wales and the UK. But the region’s ‘enterprise density’ (the number of
enterprises relative to the working age population) and the start-up rate remain lower than
in the rest of the UK21l. Recent research has highlighted that while overall entrepreneurial
activity in Wales is broadly in line with the rest of the UK, there is a shortfall in perceptions of
the availability of good start-up opportunities22.

In relation to sites and premises for business growth...

2.23 South West Wales benefits from some substantial sites for industrial expansion, including the
large strategic site at Baglan Energy Park, future phases of the Cross Hands development in
Carmarthenshire, and key sites at Felindre and Fabian Way in Swansea and the Haven
Waterway. However, there is a widely-recognised gap between demand and supply for
industrial sites and premises, as low rents (and in some cases high remediation and
infrastructure costs on ex-industrial land) make viability challenging, especially west of
Swansea. The evidence is that this acts as a brake on business expansion, both to new
investors and to existing local businesses seeking ‘grow-on’ space23.

Inequalities remain significant

2.24 Despite jobs growth over time and improvements in economic activity, recent research
highlights the extent to which rising living costs (especially housing costs) have impacted on
the real incomes of the lowest paid, a situation which has accelerated during the pandemic2+.

2.25 Across the region, concentrations of disadvantage are significant, principally in the main
urban centres of Swansea, Llanelli, Neath, Port Talbot and Pembroke Dock, and in the upper
Western Valleys. Many of these concentrations are persistent over time and reflect the long-
term impact of industrial change: while they highlight the importance of ‘supply-side’
measures to reduce economic inactivity and bring people back into the labour market, most

211n 2020, there were 11 business starts to every 100 active enterprises, compared with 14 in the UK
overall.

22 Karen Bonner et al (2018), Global Entrepreneurship Monitor UK: Wales report 2018

23 SQW/ Welsh Government (March 2020), Commercial Property: Market analysis and potential
interventions

24 Bevan Foundation (June 2021), A snapshot of poverty in spring 2021

S QW Page 25 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



15

households on low incomes are already in work?s. For a regional economic strategy, driving
demand and creating “better jobs, closer to home” is a key goal and challenge?s.

Building on strengths: Key assets

2.26 Overall, the review of economic performance over recent years suggests good progress,
especially in terms of job creation. But there is a persistent gap in outcomes between the
region and the rest of the UK. This is partly because most change is incremental: the
investment secured through City Deal (for example) will not yet have translated into
improvements in the economic data. It also reflects the ‘structural’ nature of many of the
region’s challenges, some of which (including the productivity deficit) are shared with other
parts of Wales and the North of England.

2.27 However, South West Wales contains some distinctive economic strengths and
opportunities which provide a good platform for future growth. Realising each of these
presents a challenge for future strategy, which we have set out below.

We have nationally and internationally significant university research assets

2.28 There is a strong higher education presence in the region, anchored by Swansea University
and University of Wales Trinity St David’s campuses in Carmarthen and Swansea?’. Both
universities have expanded in recent years, have made an important contribution to the
region’s physical regeneration (e.g., through the Swansea Bay campus and the SA1l
development in Swansea city centre) and are key economic ‘drivers’ in their own right.

2.29 Beyond this, Swansea University’s research is ranked as ‘world leading’ in several (mostly
STEM-related) subjects28. Across both universities, key research capabilities relate to:

e Advanced data science, where Swansea’s assets include the Computational Foundry
(bringing together computer science and mathematical expertise, and working with
industry) and the CHERISH-DE Digital Economy Centre.

e Health and medicine, with a strong focus on the application of data science in health,
linked with wider computer science expertise, and including one of six Health Data
Research UK (HDR-UK) sites nationally.

e Engineering and manufacturing, especially in materials research, and with relevance to
the energy and decarbonisation opportunities discussed further below.

25 Joseph Rowntree Foundation (November 2020), Briefing: Poverty in Wales 2020 (Annex A)

26 “Better jobs, closer to home” is a stated Welsh Government objective, as set out in the Economic
Action Plan and the Valleys Task Force strategy Our Valleys, Our Future.

27 In addition to a smaller University of South Wales presence at the Hydrogen Centre in Baglan.
28 Swansea University is assessed as ‘world-leading’ in 14 units of assessment within the 2014
Research Excellence Framework.

S QW Page 26 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



16

2.30 There is a long history of collaboration between both universities and local industry,
especially in the manufacturing sector. Examples of recent programmes include ASTUTE
2020, supporting industrial research, development and innovation in manufacturing
businesses; and UWTSD’s Manufacturing for Advanced Design Engineering (MADE)
programme, designed to support collaboration with SMEs. Many industrial collaboration
initiatives have been supported with European funding: as this draws to a close, it will be
important to maintain the momentum and capacity that has been built up in recent
years, while expanding opportunities for collaboration across the wider regional SME
base.

2.31 The commercial research base is somewhat smaller. But there has been investment in recent
years (for example, TWI's Technology Centre Wales and Advanced Engineering Materials
Research Institute at Baglan), adding value to the university-based presence.

Our energy infrastructure is extensive, and we have some of the UK’s greatest low carbon
energy generation potential

2.32 South West Wales has long had an important energy sector, especially associated with
Pembrokeshire’s oil and gas industry. The infrastructure and skills associated with this will
be important in taking advantage of the region’s vast potential in renewable energy. Several
opportunities are currently being developed through the emerging South West Wales
Regional Energy Strategy. These include:

e Wave and marine energy off the Pembrokeshire coast, with a series of commercial
and pre-commercial projects underway and in the pipeline

e The proposed Dragon Energy Island scheme in Swansea Bay, offering scope for tidal,
wave and potentially solar energy generation

e Onshore capacity, including the UK’s largest onshore wind farm at Pen-y-Cymoedd and
a range of opportunities in wind, biomass and waste-to-energy.

2.33 There is also substantial research and development capacity to support the region’s
renewable energy potential. The Offshore Renewable Energy (ORE) Catapult has a presence
at Pembroke Dock and, with several other universities, is engaged in progressing new
opportunities off the Pembrokeshire Coast. Swansea University’s SPECIFIC Innovation and
Knowledge Centre has expertise in the capture and storage of solar energy, while the
University of South Wales’ Hydrogen Centre at Baglan is supporting the experimental
production of hydrogen energy storage systems.

2.34 Our energy potential is therefore a key asset to exploit - both for South West Wales and indeed
the rest of Wales and the UK. The challenge over the next few years will be in realising
the opportunity, recognising that some technologies remain relatively nascent - and in
ensuring that the benefits can be captured locally. A long-term perspective will also be
important in developing business cases for some of the region’s major energy projects -

S QW Page 27 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



17

recognising that while they have the potential to be transformational, the full benefits may
take several years to be realised

Our business community offers scope for growth

2.35 We noted earlier the region’s relatively low levels of enterprise density and its relatively low
start-up rate. But business is central to future economic strategy - put simply,
employment is either created by existing businesses expanding, new businesses starting up,
or businesses from elsewhere deciding to locate in the region.

2.36 Recent years have seen the loss of some larger, externally-based firms (note, for example,
recent job losses in some of the region’s automotive supply chain). We retain relative
strengths in manufacturing, food production and hospitality, with evidence of start-up and
inward investment activity linked with the data science strengths highlighted above?°.
However, the region’s business stock is broadly-based: ‘high growth’ SMEs are quite widely
distributed across sectors (and across the region)3%; ownership models are diverse3!; and
there are opportunities for productivity growth across the sectoral landscape32. Following
our analysis of the ‘productivity deficit’ above, the challenge is to strengthen the ‘breadth
and depth’ of the business base, recognising scope for growth across the economy,
including (but not just) in those activities at the ‘leading edge’ of technology and
innovation.

Environmental quality and ‘sense of place’ are key assets

2.37 South West Wales’ combination of ‘place-based’ assets is distinctive and rich, including the
National Parks, the coastline, the sport and leisure offer and a university city offering both
‘compactness’ and a wide range of metropolitan amenities.

2.38 Beyond this range of functions and amenities, the region’s distinctive identity forms an
important part of the offer. There are two aspects to this:

e First, ‘quality of life’ offer clearly forms part of the proposition to visitors, investors
and potential new residents, and one which plays a key economic role. There is an
important balance to be struck between environmental quality and community and
environmental sustainability.

Second, the region’s identity relates to the importance of ‘community’, the
associations that businesses and other institutions have with the places in which
they are based, and the stake that they have locally. This is harder to pin down in
conventional economic terms, but relates to the extent to which value and ownership can

29 See the Evidence and Strategic Landscape Review for further examples.

30 SQW analysis of regional distribution of FastGrowth 50 award winners, 2009-20; Beauhurst
records of ‘fast growth’ firms in South West Wales

31 Consultation as part of the development of this Plan. See also Co-operatives Wales

32 Institute for Government (2021), Productivity: Firing on all cylinders — why restoring growth is a
matter for every UK sector

S QW Page 28 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



18

be captured or embedded locally and the challenges in growing the business and
employment base highlighted above33.

Looking to the future: Key transformational trends

2.39 Future strategy will also be influenced by wider ‘transformational’ factors that will impact all
aspects of economic life. While these apply to all advanced economies, the way in which they
are addressed and how they interact with our existing economic structure and strengths will
be fundamental. Three ‘macro trends’ are especially important, relating to decarbonisation,
digitalisation and demographic change. We consider each in turn below.

Decarbonising South West Wales

2.40 As we highlighted in the earlier overview of the policy context, the UK and Welsh
Governments’ commitment to net zero by 2050 will have an impact on all aspects of policy.

ole

The actions required to achieve the
targets - including full
decarbonisation of the power sector,
full switchover to electric vehicle
sales, installation of low-carbon

2.41 In headline terms, Wales has been successful in
reducing carbon emissions while maintaining
economic growth: between 1990 and 2018, total
CO2 emissions fell by 20%, and the country was

on track to meet its 2020 carbon reduction

targets3t. However, around 85% of the cut in
emissions came from the power sector3s. While
most other sectors also achieved reductions
these  were

(especially  manufacturing),

substantially smaller, and the surface transport

heating, and decarbonisation of
manufacturing - go beyond those
required from the world on average,
in line with Wales’ responsibility as a
richer nation with larger historical
emissions.

sector actually generated a net increase. Looking ”
to the future and the net zero commitment, the

Climate Change Committee recommended a Climate Change Committee
“leadership driven pathway” requiring far-

reaching action over the next thirty years3s.

2.42 This presents South West Wales with some distinct challenges. Currently, regional carbon
emissions are much higher than the Wales and UK average. These mostly reflect the role
of the huge Tata works at Port Talbot, an industrial installation of national significance that
remains reliant on coal inputs. The challenge for future strategy is enabling the transition
of the region’s industrial base, while ensuring wider action to decarbonise the
transport, housing and manufacturing systems - and making sure that South West Wales

3333 This is also at the centre of discussions about the concept and role of the foundational economy.
See Joe Earle et al (2017), What Wales Can Do: Asset-based policies and the foundational economy
(CREW/ Foundational Economy)

34 Climate Change Committee (December 2020), Progress Report: Reducing emissions in Wales

35 Principally through the decommissioning of the Aberthaw coal-fired power station

36 Climate Change Committee (December 2020), Advice Report: The path to a net zero Wales

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

SQwW

Page 29



19

remains competitive with other regions. Our renewable energy potential will play an
important role in this, which we explain further in Chapter 4.

Digital transformation

2.43 ‘Digitalisation’ refers to the transformation of the economy through massively increased use
of data and the development of digital technologies such as artificial intelligence, machine
learning and robotics. Digitalisation isn’t about change within a single industry; rather, it is
about the use of ‘general purpose’ technologies with a wide range of applications across
industries.

2.44 Digital transformation is not new: the period since the publication of the last Swansea Bay
Economic Regeneration Strategy has seen a transformation in the everyday use of new digital
technologies, and it has been recognised as a key driver of economic strategy for some time.
Three aspects of the transformational impacts of digitalisation are especially relevant:

e Disruptive effects on industry: Use of digital technology leads to greater efficiency, with
firms that have the capacity and capability to invest and adopt more likely to benefit from
productivity gains and improved competitiveness. But its ‘transformative’ power is in the
convergence of technologies to drive entirely new industries (wearable devices or
gaming, for example), which in turn drive applications elsewhere. A consequence is the
breakdown of traditional industry sectors and markets, leading to a recognition of
digitalisation as the ‘fourth industrial revolution’.

e Impacts on the labour market: Estimates of the potential impact of automation on jobs
vary greatly, although most studies suggest that while new technologies will substitute
for labour in some sectors, this is likely to be more than offset by job creation3’. However,
technology is changing the way in which work is done, with the potential for positive and
negative impacts on working conditions; the need and opportunity for job changes over
the course of the working life; changing demand for skills; and the ability to work
remotely.

e Impacts on services, potentially helping to overcome relative remoteness, and including
the development of new ways of accessing health and care, which in turn impact on the
development of new goods and services and demand for jobs.

2.45 Across all of these, the message for future strategy is that responding to digitalisation is not
just about ensuring the ‘supply’ of new technology and connectivity (although that is
important). It is also about driving economic demand for new sKkills and technologies -
both at the ‘leading edge’ of innovation and throughout the economy.

37 Welsh Government (September 2019), Wales 4.0: Delivering economic transformation for as better
future of work (Professor Philip Brown'’s review of digital innovation for the economy and the future
of work in Wales), pp.22-26

S QW Page 30 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



Responding to demographic change

2.46 South West Wales has a growing population. However, the ‘working age’ population has fallen

slightly over the past decade. Over the next 20 years, the ‘working age’ population is expected

to fall by around 1%, representing a net loss of around 4,700 people aged 16-64 over the

period3s.

2.47 The gradual ageing of the

population is a long-term trend.
Key implications for future

Figure 2-3: Population change (compound annual
growth rates) by age group, 2018-38

economic strategy include: £00,000
. . . 700,000
Changing working lives: The
600,000
concept of ‘working age’ is
becoming i ingly fluid,
ecoming increasin ,
g gLy 400,000
as people work for longer, and CAGR 2018-38: -0.06%

300,000

more  flexibly  (although

200,000
individuals’ ability to work for
100,000

longer will depend on job type CAGR 2018-38: -0.18%

e i DO O DD DA OO N DO D D D KO O AN P
and conditions and the ability RN R RS VR R R R R R R R IR I
to adapt to new roles and mAge 15and under M Age 16-64 M Age 65+
teChl’lOIOgiES over time). Source: StatsWales, 2018-based population projections

Changes in service demand:

As the analysis of recent economic performance demonstrates, there has been strong
growth in employment and output associated with health and social care, as demand
increases from an ageing population. Changing demographics will support changes in
wider demand for goods and services as well.

Rising dependency ratios: While changing demographics are driven by life expectancies
and birth rates, they also partly reflect the balance of migration, with gradually falling
populations in some post-industrial and rural communities, and in-migration, especially
from older people, along parts of the coast3°. This is a gradual process - but retaining and
attracting younger people also helps to support community resilience and sustainability,
and itself depends on generating local economic activity and demand.

Bringing it together: key issues for the Delivery Plan

2.48 Summarising the ‘state of the region’, our key assets and the long-term ‘macro’ trends that

will impact across the economy, we can see that:

38 Although note that the picture varies across the region, with a sharp projected fall in the working
age population in Pembrokeshire, but continued growth in Swansea.
39 Gerald Holtham (June 2021)), Rejuvenating Wales (Hodge Foundation/ CLEC)

SQwW

Page 31

20

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



The region’s weaknesses are largely ‘structural’. They are linked with processes of
long-term industrial change, are shared with many other parts of the UK, and map onto
the region’s relatively low productivity.

Set against this, there has been strong progress in recent years, especially in creating
new jobs and in driving forward transformational projects. This provides a strong
foundation on which to build.

South West Wales enjoys some distinctive strengths and opportunities - especially
linked with the region’s renewable energy potential, university - industrial links and its
quality of life offer. These also have the potential to make a positive impact in relation to
the long-term environmental, technological and demographic trends.

There is a ‘window of opportunity’ to build on and capture some of these strengths.
Some are still at a relatively early stage (for example, elements of the renewable energy
opportunity and the potential for industrial decarbonisation), but the technology is
developing fast, and some other regions will offer fierce competition for investment.

We are a very diverse region, with a distinctive balance of urban, rural, national park,
coastal and industrial assets. But there is substantial commonality across South West
Wales, and some of our big opportunities have a region-wide footprint. Some also extend
beyond the region itself, and outward-facing links will be important.

‘Transformational’ growth opportunities need to be balanced with the conditions
for incremental improvements in business resilience and capacity across the
regional economy. There are some distinctive opportunities at the ‘leading edge’ - but
long-term employment resilience and wage growth will depend on the sustainability,
productivity and expansion of the wider stock of regional SMEs - not just the ‘pioneer’
firms.

2.49 Based on this understanding of our economy and its potential, the next chapter introduces

our strategic framework, to guide our actions over the next decade.

SQwW

Page 32

21

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



22

3. Our ambitions to 2030

Building on the evidence base, this chapter introduces our ambitions for the South

West Wales economy. It explains the changes that we want to see over the next
decade and introduces the three ‘Missions’ that will guide our shared activity.

From the evidence to a strategic framework...

3.1 Over the next ten years, we seek to build on the distinctive strengths and opportunities
identified in the previous chapter to develop a more prosperous and resilient economy. To
help plan for the future, we have identified three Ambitions (statements about the nature of
the South West Wales economy that we want to work towards), supporting three Missions
(priority areas on which our shared Delivery Plan actions will be focused):

Figure 3-1: Our Ambitions and Missions
> BTN )

Resilient Enterprising
and and
sustainable ambitious
Balanced and
inclusive

Source: SQW 2021

Unpacking our Ambitions

3.2 Our three Ambitions are broadly cast. They recognise that achieving sustainable, long-term
prosperity and the “South West Wales we want” is about more than the pursuit of economic
growth as a goal for its own sake - and that prosperity will itself be enabled by progress across
a number of fronts.

3.3 Our Ambitions seek an economy that is, over the long term, more resilient and sustainable;
enterprising and ambitious; and balanced and inclusive.

S QW Page 33 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



23

Table 3-1: Unpacking our Ambitions: The economy we want

Resilient and sustainable

¢ Resilient to technology change and the impacts of digitalisation:
>  Supporting firms in adopting and adapting to new technology
> Building labour market resilience through the skills system from schools through to adult
learning
e Resilient to climate change and decarbonisation:
> Increasing the resilience of the region’s manufacturing base (including in its (currently)
relatively carbon-intensive foundation industries)
> Supporting adaption and adoption throughout the economy (across sectors and through
the building stock and transport system)
> Delivering robust digital connectivity to support changing working practices and better
access to employment.
e Supporting resilient and more ‘embedded’ firms and supply chains
> Developing the local business base through access to support, finance, networks and
procurement
> Embedding best practice and resilience throughout the supply chain
> Continuously building management capacity and capability.

Enterprising and ambitious

Enterprising and ambitious

e Ambitious in relation to our long-term energy opportunity
> Ensuring capacity to drive forward our potential
> Integrating our natural renewable energy advantages with our university and industrial

strengths

e Enterprising in relation to changing market conditions, technology and opportunities
> Investing in the skills system across the economy and driving demand for higher level and
technical skills, as well as influencing supply

> Investing in the commercial property stock - for local businesses scaling up as well as new
investors

e Driving new investment, innovation and funding models
> Developing sustainable alternatives to European funding

> Promoting the region as a location to invest, work and visit

Balanced and inclusive

Balanced and inclusive
e Balanced between innovation at the leading edge and sustainable growth across the
economy
> Developing opportunities for ‘new to the firm’ innovation, as well as R&D and new
technology and product development
> Recognising the opportunity for a diverse range of business and ownership models
e Balanced spatially, across the region
> Celebrating regional diversity and a wide distribution of opportunity
e Creating long-term growth, while sustaining and enhancing core environmental and
community assets
> Recognising and enhancing the inherent value of the environment to the quality of life and
quality of place proposition
>  Supporting community ownership of economic assets, where this can support local
opportunity and generate a sustainable return.

S QW Page 34 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



3.4

3.5

3.6

Realising our Ambitions

The Ambitions set out above are extensive, and are consistent with the Wellbeing of Future
Generations Act. They are also all interlinked: they are not so much ‘themes’ as a vision of how
we want the economy to evolve. Over the next ten years, all the actions that the South West
Wales local authorities take in support of regeneration and economic development will
contribute to achieving them - whether they are delivered at regional scale, or are more
locally focused.

But to deliver our overall goal of a more “resilient and sustainable; enterprising and
ambitious; and balanced and inclusive” economy, there are clear actions on which we will
need to focus over the next decade. We have called these our three Missions, which we will
use to guide delivery. These are:

e Establishing South West Wales as a UK leader in renewable energy and the development
of a net zero economy

e Building a strong, resilient and ‘embedded’ business base
e Growing and sustaining the experience offer.

The following chapters explain each Mission, setting out what we seek to achieve, the
opportunities, challenges and risks that we need to address, and the solutions and projects
that we aim to progress. Although we explain each Mission in turn, they should be seen as
integrated: establishing South West Wales as a UK leader in renewable energy and a net zero
economy is, for example, a key aspect of the other two Missions.

24

S QW Page 35 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



25

4. Mission 1: A UK leader in renewable energy
and the net zero economy

Looking to 2030, we aim to make South West Wales a UK leader in renewable energy.
That means taking advantage of our natural assets and our industrial and R&D

capabilities to build an internationally-significant presence in future fuel
technologies and to drive the decarbonisation of our industrial base and the wider
economy.

Figure 4-1: Summary of assets, opportunities, challenges and actions

Countervailing pressure of

Concentration of onshore and Linking energy generation existing high carbon intensity Additional capacity to drive
offshore opportunities at with industrial industry forward the agenda
different stages of market decarbonisation Securing/ maintaining Progressing the region’s

readiness Making the most of capacity to drive the strategic major renewable energy
Emerging Regional Energy opportunities presented by agenda, and major projects generation projects
Strategy and Welsh the existing knowledge/ forward Attracting and driving
Government support research base Competition from (and forward new industrial
University R&D assets and Translating early stage establishing collaborations investment
growing corporate capacity projects into investable with) other regions Decarbonising transport and
for industrial propositions Securing Government the housing stock
decarbonisatioin support

Understanding the case for the Mission: the core rationale

4.1 As set out in the evidence base the decarbonisation imperative is global, and in Wales is
mandated by the UK and Welsh Governments’ net zero commitments and the need to take
urgent action now. There is a clear overall policy direction, which has been reinforced by the
emerging suite of strategies at UK Government level ahead of COP26 in autumn 202140 and
by the renewed and re-emphasised climate change focus of the Welsh Government. With a
clear and compelling direction of travel, there is an opportunity for South West Wales to
capitalise on its renewable energy assets and ensure that it is on the ‘front foot’ in adapting to
change.

Delivering the region’s low-carbon energy projects at scale

4.2 In South West Wales, our potential is clearly articulated, and is linked with both our natural
environmental assets and infrastructure and skills base resulting from our long history in
energy-related activity. The range of existing and emerging projects and assets is extensive,
as illustrated in Figure 4-2:

40 For example, the new UK Hydrogen Strategy (August 2021)

S QW Page 36 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



Figure 4-2: Key energy assets

-
-

- 9§

.Dmgon LNG

South Hook Terminal
LNG Terminal
(&
o
S
\/alero Oil
Refin
Pembroke
Power Station
Y il
/ N -~
o N
’
~ ’

Dyffryn Brodyn
Windfam

Wear Point
Windfarm

S Pembrokeshire
s ~ Demonstration Zone

Brechfa Forest i
West Windfarm Alltwalis Wind
oy . Farm
O
Mynydd Y Gwair
Homes as Power
Stzm'pns
Baglan Energy
Park
- University of
8o Coerfyral South Wales
R / Cermarthen Boy Hydrogen
_At/Near Pembroke Dock: bt Centre
Offshore Renewable Energy e — onBa
Catapuit Pm Stangn
Marine Energy Centre of
Excellence FLEXIS
Marine Energy Test Area SPECIFIC River Tawe { t
Innovation and Bam Dragon Energy
Knowledge | ... - cata € Crowr) Island ght
Centre

4.3 Key renewable energy assets include the combination of marine energy activity associated
with Pembroke Dock Marine and the proposed tidal, wind and potentially solar energy
scheme at Dragon Energy Island in Swansea Bay. They also include a range of onshore wind
and waste-from-energy schemes across the region, and a potential nuclear fusion prototype
scheme in Pembrokeshire. The Hydrogen Centre at Baglan focuses on experimental
development of renewable hydrogen production and storage, as well as R&D in hydrogen
vehicles, fuel cell applications and energy systems. The Flexible Integrated Energy Systems
(FLEXIS) project is delivering a smart energy demonstration zone in Port Talbot, focused on

Source: Produced by SQW 2021. Licence 100030994 Contains 0S data © Crown copyright [and database right] [2020]

local energy systems, heat recovery and the adoption of low emission vehicles.

4.4 However, while the scale of activity is substantial, there is a risk that the potential may not be
fully realised, for three reasons:

Technologies are, in some cases, at a relatively early stage. They are also complex,
and in many cases will require long-term funding, commercially or from Government.
Some of this will need to come forward in conditions of some uncertainty: for example,
the Welsh Government’s Hydrogen Pathway notes that “there is uncertainty regarding the
exact role hydrogen will have in supporting decarbonisation in Wales.... [but despite this],
there is still an urgent need to take the first steps to develop the skills, expertise and supply

chain for hydrogen scale-up in Wales™1.

41 Welsh Government (January 2021), Hydrogen in Wales: A pathway and next steps for developing the

sector in Wales, (consultation document), p,11

h

SQwW

d

rogen ener

Page 37

26

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



27

Competing areas and technologies may move faster within this dynamic technology
environment. South West Wales has distinctive assets — but if additional capacity and
investment is directed elsewhere, some of these advantages could diminish.

Local benefits are not automatically captured through the energy generation
process. The good news is that there is a solid R&D base in South West Wales to capitalise
on the opportunity (see, for example, the Hydrogen Centre referred to above; Swansea
University’s SPECIFIC Centre), as well as schemes (such as the Marine Energy Engineering
Centre for Excellence project at Pembroke Dock) to build supply chain opportunities with
SMEs. It will be important that these are driven hard, to ensure that the region benefits
from the added value of renewable energy investment.

4.5 Delivering the region’s renewable energy opportunities at scale - and ensuring that they are

integrated with wider policy and maximise local benefits for local businesses and

communities will be central to regional strategy over the coming years:

Key action areas

SQwW

We will build capacity and expertise to maximise South West Wales’ renewable
energy and net zero potential.

There are several public bodies with knowledge and expertise, including (for example)
the Welsh Government Energy Service and Marine Energy Wales, as well as UK
Government agencies such as the ORE Catapult. But the agenda is complex:
establishing a regional ‘decarbonisation system’ could help to address region-wide
goals (including in relation to skills and infrastructure) and coordinate investment
priorities beyond the delivery of specific initiatives.

We will seek to secure new investment in renewable energy infrastructure

Linked with the capacity building described above, we will work with the Welsh and
UK Governments and with the private sector to make the case for investment in
‘nationally significant’ schemes such as Dragon Energy Island and the Pembrokeshire
marine proposition, as well as smaller-scale schemes, including on public land.

We will work to deliver the Regional Energy Strategy

The Regional Energy Strategy has been developed in parallel with this Plan and will be
published in 2021. We will work to take forward pilot and successor Local Energy
System projects (such as the pilot currently underway at Milford Haven Energy
Kingdom), and we will seek to link the energy system objectives of the Energy Strategy
with opportunities for local business engagement and supply chain development.

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

Page 38



28

Decarbonising our industrial base

4.6 The high carbon intensity of some of South West Wales’ industrial activity is a vulnerability:
while the region’s relatively high carbon emissions in the data is largely caused by the steel
industry, oil and gas are also important to the region, as well as our large manufacturing base.

4.7 Work is currently underway to develop a programme for industrial decarbonisation through
the South Wales Industrial Cluster (SWIC) initiative, funded by UK Research and
Innovation and including several energy and heavy industrial firms in South West Wales
(including Tata, Valero and RWE, the operator of the Pembroke refinery)+2. The focus of the
programme is on the production and use of hydrogen and on mechanisms to secure large-
scale industrial decarbonisation through ‘fuel switching’: as with some of the initiatives
discussed above, the proposition is in its relatively early days, although achieving large-scale
change will be important for the region’s future competitiveness. More broadly, there is an
opportunity to attract additional investment into the region, beyond the decarbonisation of
the existing stock: ‘transformational’ projects such as the forthcoming Global Centre for Rail
Excellence provide examples of investments supported with public funds, but the existing
combination of energy-related activity will be an important factor in attracting new business
locations.

4.8 Building on the region’s growing presence in renewable energy and the current focus on
industrial decarbonisation:

Key action areas

e We will progress the opportunity presented by SWIC and seek to secure future
investment to support the region’s future industrial competitiveness

As with other aspects of the low carbon agenda, technology is developing rapidly and
the scale of investment in demonstration projects and initiatives such as SWIC is
substantial. Through our increased capacity to drive forward the decarbonisation
agenda, we will seek to secure sequential investment, working with the UK and Welsh
Governments as appropriate.

e We will grow the wider low carbon industrial base and promote the region’s
potential to new investors

Linked with actions to promote the region as an investment destination, we will
highlight our potential to new investors (including our university presence, skills base
and access to sites and premises) and will press forward major proposed investments
such as the GCRE.

42 https://www.swic.cymru/news

S QW Page 39 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



29

Decarbonising the wider economy

4.9 Decarbonisation will extend beyond the industrial base, and will impact on housing and
domestic heating, non-domestic properties and the transport network. Much is already
underway:

e In relation to the housing stock, Pobl Housing is leading one of the UK’s largest
community-based retrofit, energy generation and smart energy management projects at
Penderry, Swansea, the outcomes of which will inform the larger, City Deal-funded Homes
as Power Stations scheme.

e In relation to transport, all the local authorities are engaged in programmes of fleet
decarbonisation, and the Swansea Bay and South West Wales Metro will be at the core
of the region’s lower carbon, more sustainable transport system.

e In relation to re-using and preventing waste, Wales already has some of the world’s
highest municipal recycling rates - with all South West Wales authorities (and Wales as a
whole) experiencing a rapid increase in recycling rates over the past twenty years43.

4.10 Linked with the Regional Energy Strategy, over the coming years:

Key action areas

e Building on existing schemes, we will progress the decarbonisation of the
housing and business stock

From an economic development perspective - and our wider ambitions to secure a
more ‘embedded and resilient’ business base, this should provide opportunities for
local supply chain development and community-based employment solutions (as well
as, in some cases, local community ownership).

e We will press forward the development of Swansea Bay and South West Wales
Metro

As well as the Metro itself, this will lead to a better integrated and more sustainable
transport network through the incorporation of bus and active travel services and the
development of opportunities to work and access services closer to home.

e We will work to achieve a circular economy

Building on our performance in reducing waste and transforming recycling rates, there
are opportunities to increase re-use of goods and materials offering potential for
community-based solutions to increase repair and the use of technology to increase the
scope for re-use of materials and reduced food waste.

43 Welsh Government (2019), Bevond Recycling: A strategy to make the circular economy in Wales a
reality; StatsWales (2021), Combined municipal re-use, recycling and composting rates

S QW Page 40 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



30

5. Mission 2: Building a strong, resilient and
embedded business base

Business is at the centre of our strategy to 2030: it will be through the expansion of
existing firms and the start up and attraction of new ones that new employment will

be generated and productivity growth secured. That means supporting sustainable
business growth- both at the ‘leading edge’ of technology and innovation and across
the economy.

Figure 5-1: Summary of assets, opportunities, challenges and actions
Currentassets Next opportunities Key challenges
Strong university-industrial Supporting dynamivi (thirovch

links entrepreneurship and early- Weak ‘infrastructure’ offer (e.g., Accelerated adoption and
: stage expansion) commercial property, impeding innovation support (linked
= L(;ca! buzﬁ:i;zztmo;ks' . Supporting resilience (through start-up and expansion) with recommendations of
m rf:; I;ior businesses om technology adoption, Skills and capacity challenges Wales 4.0 in relation to
3 s - management capacity and Limited private sector support business, skills and innovation
Growing policy interest in succession) base support)
encou.ragmg locally ‘embedded Supporting local supply chain Access to growth finance ‘Progressive procurement’
businesses and local supply
chains development Barriers to commercialisation within a local business and
o Building an effective (and Limited business density and supply chain development
e wice inturons 6 broad) innovation ‘ecosystem’ ‘leakage’ out of region system

Development Bank)

Understanding the case for the Mission: the core rationale

5.1 The review of the evidence in Chapter 2 highlighted positive employment outcomes in recent
years, growth in the business stock, and a strong record in translational research activities
between the university knowledge base and industry.

5.2 However, the economy remains to some extent in a process of ‘restructuring’, away from
traditional strengths in parts of the manufacturing sector and towards growth in areas such
as information and communications and health care (as well as in activities linked with the
growing energy sector highlighted in Mission 1). Changing trading relationships also present
challenges (notably, but not only, in agriculture and food production), some of which have yet
to fully work through)#+.

5.3 This transition will bring opportunities within those sectors that are growing - and as
highlighted earlier, opportunities for growth and productivity gain are cross-sectoral.
However:

44 Janet Dwyer (2018), The implications of Brexit for agriculture, land use and rural areas in Wales
(Wales Centre for Public Policy)

S QW Page 41 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



31

e Even where job losses in one industry are replaced with jobs in another, there is the risk
that they may not generate the same level of output (and therefore command the same

pay).

e The wider economy of South West Wales has a relatively narrow business base: business
density is relatively low, and there are few indigenous large or larger medium-sized
businesses. However, the prospect of inward investment at scale has reduced over the
past twenty years. The risk is that as the economy evolves, losses may not be fully offset
by gains, and the ‘productivity gap’ remains or widens.

5.4 Inresponse, our Mission to create a “strong, resilient and embedded business base” seeks
to encourage a continued focus on innovation and the growth of capabilities at the ‘leading
edge’, balanced with an approach aimed at achieving greater resilience, growth potential and
capacity for sustained employment across the region’s wider business base, linked with the
decarbonisation imperative in Mission 1.

Growing the innovative edge and accelerating diffusion

5.5 Innovation policy in Wales is at a point of transition, as the European funding that has
sustained several major programmes (including the ‘core’ SMART programmes delivered via
the Welsh Government?*> and the wide range of sector or thematic schemes (such as, in South
West Wales, ASTUTE and RICE#¢) come to an end; and the range of actors involved in
innovation policy (including, potentially, a more active role for UK Government), increases.

5.6 Atthe same time, there is a consensus, highlighted 6 ‘
in arecentreview for the Welsh Government, that . L.

) i ) Today, innovation is about so much
the role of innovation policy has evolved, to be  |,,5re than science and technology
less narrowly focused on technology, and more ”
embracing of actions focused on addressing social
challenges (perhaps especially important given Future of Innovation Policy report
the growth of the health and care sector and the
long-term demographic challenges highlighted in Chapter 2) and the impact of climate
change?’. The review also emphasises a need to further develop translational research
activities and to link innovation support activity more clearly with the range of finance,
advisory, networking and other programmes that contribute to a successful innovation

‘ecosystem’.

45 SMART Innovation (advice and support to business); SMART Cymru (financial assistance to
business); and SMART Expertise (financial support to higher education).

46 Reducing Industrial Carbon Emissions (RICE) is led by University of South Wales and Swansea
University and works with Welsh supply chain companies to test how CO2 produced from heavy
industrial processes can be used to make high value products and industrial chemicals.

47 See Kevin Morgan, Dylan Henderson and Rick Delbridge (May 2021), Scoping the future of
innovation policy in Wales (Cardiff University, Centre for Innovation Policy Research)

S QW Page 42 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



32

5.7 It will be important that regional activity in South West Wales adds value to and aligns with
evolving Welsh national policy (and the wide range of programmes and institutions at UK
level). Over the next few years:

Key action areas

e We will explore a better-integrated regional innovation offer, in the form of a
‘virtual Research and Technology Organisation’ for South West Wales

The universities are key regional assets and have a strong history of translational
research with industry. However, the wider landscape is somewhat fragmented, and
may become increasingly so as current programmes come to an end. We aim to
achieve a model where there is “no wrong door”, making the most of our university
capabilities and enabling them to meet industry need. This could extend across a
range of sectors and technologies, linked with (for example) future plans for the
development of the research and development offer linked with Pentre Awel at
Llanelli, and the close involvement of University of Wales Trinity St David and the
development of Yr Egin and its associated creative cluster. It may also embrace wider
innovation capabilities, including support in management skills and capacity and
(linked with our wider approach to regional skills development) access to talent to
enable innovative SMEs to reach their potential.

There may be several options in taking this proposal forward - but the key point is
that we maximise the value of our shared assets to deliver a joined-up service across
government, higher education and the private sector.

Growing productivity and resilience across the economy

5.8 Across the wider business stock, there have been changes in the support landscape since the
last Regeneration Strategy was produced. Nationally, Business Wales provides a central
gateway to a range of support products, and since 2017, the Development Bank of Wales has
consolidated publicly-backed loan and equity support into an ‘arms-length’ and widely-
recognised vehicle. In addition, the Welsh Government provides some direct investment
(generally in relation to larger, often manufacturing firms), and all the South West Wales local
authorities offer support services (in addition to the often university-linked innovation
services highlighted above).

5.9 Arecentreview of the Welsh business support landscape highlighted three challenges, which
are relevant to the strategy set out in this Plan*s:

e First, Wales’ relative vulnerability to economic shocks: a function of the continuing
process of restructuring highlighted in the evidence base. This has contributed to the

48 Jack Watkin (February 2021), A Better Balance: Business support policy for the foundational
economy (CREW/ Institute of Welsh Affairs)

S QW Page 43 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



33

more recent policy focus on indigenous business growth. However, while economic
‘shocks’ are often seen through large ‘one-off events (plant closures, redundancy
programmes, and so on), economy-wide technology-driven transformation is larger in its
overall impact, and the ability to adapt and respond will be important across firm sizes
and sectors.

e Second, the scale of the support offer, and the relatively small number of firms that it
reaches (the inference being that there is a much wider range of SMEs that could benefit
from interaction with the support system, were the reach to be greater).

e Third, dissemination of benefits, in particular the extent to which gains in business
performance are captured in wages and tax and in which benefits to the supply chain
accrue regionally. The Welsh Government has placed a greater emphasis on this in recent
years, through the development of the ‘economic contract’ proposed in the Economic
Action Plan

5.10 Over the coming years, we want to create a better integrated system across local and national
government, within which a strengthened ‘support’ offer is linked with the supply of skills
and premises, the role of the public sector as a purchaser and commissioner within the local
economy and in ensuring that there is widespread access to fair and sustainable work:

Key action areas

e We will seek a better co-ordinated support package for business

The scope of this, and the interaction between delivery at different geographical
levels, will need to be explored. But the proposition is that there is a need to drive
business density, start-up rates and entrepreneurship, and resilience and
‘adaptability’ to change across the SME base - recognising that ‘enterprise’ embraces a
range of organisational types and ownership models#.

o We will link this with public sector purchasing power

Recently, there has been a focus on the role that public procurement can play in
supporting local economic growth. This has been reflected in the Welsh Government’s
review of procurement, which has explored the concepts of ‘community wealth-
building and the ‘anchor institutions’ in the procurement process>s?, and the South
West Wales local authorities are all committed to the proactive and progressive use of
procurement. The aim here is to ensure that local SMEs are able to successfully tender
for work (linked with the business support offer above), and to use this as a
springboard for future growth.

49 Including social enterprises, employee-owned businesses, and so on.

50 Welsh Government (2020), Progress towards the development of a new procurement landscape in

Wales

S QW Page 44 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



Key action areas

We will invest in bringing forward access to sites and premises

The evidence shows that there is a persistent market failure in the delivery of
commercial property. This has the effect of blocking the expansion of local SMEs (as
well as presenting a barrier to attracting larger investors). Across the local authorities
and Welsh Government, we will seek to bring forward development on the region’s
key strategic sites at Baglan, Port Talbot Waterfront, Fabian Way, Felindre, Cross
Hands and the Haven Waterway, as well as within the wide range of smaller sites that
will help to support distributed growth across the region, consistent with our wider
decarbonisation objectives. We will also work to bring forward new city centre office
accommodation in Swansea city centre, building on recent investment and continuing
the city’s transformation.

We will actively promote South West Wales as an investment location

While the focus of this Mission is on growing our locally-based business stock, inward
investment has historically been important in South West Wales, and it remains a key
driver of skills and employment and a source of demand for local suppliers. We
welcome new investment: we will actively promote the region’s assets (linked with its
quality of life and visitor economy offer described in Mission 3) and we will work with
investors to ensure access to skills and supply chain links, embedding them further in
the local economy.

We will continue to invest in the region’s skills capacity

Recent years have seen an improvement in the region’s skills profile, and we have a
strong track record in building an understanding of employer demand and linking it
clearly with provision. Alongside the measures within this Plan to increase skills
demand and employer engagement, we will continue to invest in strengthening supply
at all levels, through specialist infrastructure, investment in access to employment
and a continued focus (building on the region’s Skills and Talent Programme) on
responding to local economic demand and opportunity.

Across all our actions, we will improve access to fair and secure employment

Despite the region’s success in creating jobs, economic inactivity remains higher than
in the rest of the UK. While in-work poverty is a significant issue - and one which our
focus on productivity and resilience across all sectors seeks to tackle - there is strong
evidence that being in work supports positive outcomes across a range of measures>..
Building on our experience of successful programmes such as Workways+, we will
ensure a range of support to enable people to enter and progress in the labour market.

51 Welsh Government (2019), Employability Plan, p,9

SQW

Page 45

34

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



35

6. Mission 3: Growing and sustaining the South
West Wales ‘experience’ offer

South West Wales enjoys a superb environment and a unique ‘quality of life’ offer.
This is a key asset for the region, and one which we must protect and enhance. We
will make South West Wales known for the quality and breadth of its ‘experience

offer’, bringing together urban and rural environmental quality, ‘quality of life’ and
culture. This will support a high-value visitor economy - but it will also be locally
owned and a central part of our investment proposition.

Figure 6-1: Summary of assets, opportunities, challenges and actions
Currentassets Next opportunities Key challenges

Securing increased value

from the ‘South West Wales .
assets (natural environmental and

Unique combination of Balancing economic,

Targeted and coordinated
experience), in the context . ST capital investment,
P - ° community sustainability ; pita’ :
of increasing demand for : . including in town and city
; S considerations.
quality and sustainability centres
and growing opportunities
for dispersed and remote
working
Building and raising
awareness of the local
‘brand’

environment; sport and
leisure opportunities,
urban and rural mix;
unique cultural and
heritage character)
Important existing tourism
offer, closely linked with
environmental quality

Countervailing pressures
on town and city centres as
they need to repurpose in
the light of structural
change

Balance of initiatives at
regional, local and
community-driven scale

Understanding the case for the Mission: the core rationale

6.1 South West Wales’ ‘experience offer’ is a key strength. It is also multifaceted and interlinked:
while it includes the region’s substantial visitor economy, it recognises that the visitor
economy is itself dependent on the quality of the region’s cultural and environmental offer.
At a national level, this is reflected with the statement of ‘Wales’ core offer’ within the Welsh
Government’s Priorities for the Visitor economy (set out in Figure 6-2). This highlights the
importance of ‘sense of place’ within the Welsh offer, with the visitor economy helping to act
as a showcase for local food and drink and celebrating the Welsh language as a central part of
local and national identity>2.

6.2 In South West Wales, the range of experiences the region has to offer is diverse and
impressive. It is this diversity that provides much of the region’s distinctiveness: the
proximity of the university city of Swansea to the beaches of the Gower for instance, or the
region’s range of landscape types (including the Pembrokeshire Coast and Brecon Beacons
National Parks) and network of smaller rural towns. This also makes the region attractive as
a place to live, and ought to be a central part of the region’s investment proposition. This

52 Welsh Government (January 2020), Welcome to Wales: Priorities for the visitor economy, 2020-25,
p-9.

S QW Page 46 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



6.3

6.4

Mission focuses on investment in the ‘experience economy’ and how we can promote it to
new and diverse audiences.

Figure 6-2: The Welsh ‘core offer’ to visitors

Wales' core offer

Outstanding landscapes, Vibrant communities Epic adventures and
protected and cared for and a creative culture activities for everyone

AcCCeE . i-leading adventures,

apes An authentic but highly creative anc

ear

A unique Welsh welcome

We will also do more to develop and promote a un

aracterful places 10 stay and local 1ood and drink experiences across Wales

National experiences such as The Wales Way

Source: Welsh Government (2020), Welcome to Wales: Priorities for the visitor economy, 2020-25

Investing in our experience economy

The ‘good news’ is that several visitor economy trends coincide with some of South West
Wales’ inherent strengths: in particular, the increased interest in sustainability, green tourism
and nature and a desire for ‘authentic’ experiences. These, and the inherent value of local
communities and identity, form part of the wellbeing ‘offer’ to residents as well. However,
with the exception of Swansea, all parts of the region are forecast to see falling working age
populations over the next twenty years. New employment opportunities should help to
reverse this — but there is also an opportunity through the acceleration of remote working
and increasing flexibility to retain more of our young people and university graduates, and to
attract a wider demographic to the region.

Over the next decade, this will mean investment focused both on the quality of the visitor offer
and the appeal of South West Wales as a place to live and work - recognising that these are
inherently interconnected:

Key action areas

e Wewill invest in the region’s ‘experience infrastructure’

We will seek to broaden the range of attractions and opportunities across the region,
especially where they contribute to an increasingly sustainable offer, linked with the
region’s heritage (including in relation to local food and drink produce), culture and
natural environment. This will include ensuring that the delivery of key national

36

S QW Page 47 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



37

Key action areas

initiatives (such as the proposed National Forest) contribute to our wider economic
ambitions.

e We will invest in our city, town and community centres

Our towns and cities are the gateways to our region, and the focal points for
community, commercial and civic life. Much investment has taken place and much is
underway - with (for example) the Swansea Arena and its bridge link to the city
centre opening in 2021, creating a further milestone in the city’s regeneration.
However, there is more to do: across the region, many of our town and community
centres have been impacted by structural change in the retail sector - with the
process of repurposing requiring complex action on a number of fronts.

Building on our experience of working together across the region, and in the spirit of
the Welsh Government’s Transforming Towns initiative, we will prioritise further
investment in our town and city centres, ensuring that they are sustainable focal
points for the long term.

e We will make the ‘experience economy’ work for everyone

Not all parts of the region benefit from the excellent quality of life that the region has
to offer - and in some places, our ability to retain and attract younger people is
impacted by deteriorating housing affordability (an issue which has the potential to
worsen further in an economy increasingly characterised by remote working). Linked
with our decarbonisation and net zero objectives, we will continue to invest in
affordable housing solutions and long-term community renewal.

Promoting the region

6.5 The quality of South West Wales’ assets present an opportunity to better promote the region
- to visitors and investors and to raise the region’s profile on the wider stage. This should
extend to encompass the renewable energy potential and industrial opportunities highlighted
earlier: the region’s future in a greener economy (and the opportunities that presents)
combining with its cultural and environmental quality:

Key action areas

e We will take a more coordinated approach to promoting the South West Wales
opportunity

Recognising that each part of the region has a distinct identity and ‘brand’, we will
work to ensure coordination across the visitor, education, local produce and investor

S QW Page 48 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



38

Key action areas

marketing channels to ensure that South West Wales has a clearer ‘external’ profile
and a complementary offer.

e We will invest in quality

Welcome to Wales, the Welsh Government’s strategy for the visitor economy, places a
strong emphasis on quality of the whole experience offer - accommodation, food and
drink, the public realm, environment, and so on - as the route to a higher-value, more
sustainable economic base. Across all of the actions above, we will invest - with
business - in quality and excellence.

S QW Page 49 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



39

7. Moving forward: Delivering the Plan

This Plan provides a framework for taking forward the priorities that we have
identified in our Ambitions and Missions over the long term. Delivery will depend on

a range of investment sources and the coordination over time of specific projects
which combine to deliver our objectives. This chapter explains our approach to
funding and delivery, and how we will prioritise and monitor our progress.

From a framework to a pipeline of complementary projects...

7.1 This Plan takes a long-term view. Recognising that new opportunities will emerge over time,
it is intended to be flexible, with specific actions described at a relatively high level.

7.2 To convert these into practical interventions, we have prepared a project pipeline. This sets
out a schedule of interventions, describing how they contribute to our Ambitions and
Missions, their current development status and the actions that need to be taken to bring them
forward. This will be kept ‘live’ and will be regularly reviewed by regional partners. This will
enable new interventions to come forward where opportunities arise (for example,
commercial proposals may lead to propositions that have not yet been identified), and for
project information to be updated as schemes progress.

7.3 The projects within the pipeline are at different stages of development. Consistent with the
approach used by HM Treasury and the Welsh Government (and adopted by the City Deal),
projects will be brought forward through the business case process set outin the ‘Green Book’
appraisal guide. In summary, this means that projects will be considered against the following

headings:
Table 7-1: Project business case considerations
Consideration ‘ Description
Strategic fit e How strong is the evidence of economic demand or need?

e Does the project add ‘net regional value’ (i.e,, is it additional to
activity already taking place in the region, and if there is any
duplication, is this mitigated?)

e Does the project contribute to the overall strategic framework
(i.e., will it support delivery of an economy that is “resilient and
sustainable; balanced and inclusive; and enterprising and
ambitious™?

Options appraisal e Have arange of options been considered, and is there a clear
case for the preferred option?

Value for money e Does the project represent good value, in terms of the outputs
and outcomes it will achieve, relative to anticipated public costs?

S QW Page 50 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



40

Consideration Description

Affordability e Does funding for the project exist, and/ or is there a clear route
to funding?
e I[sthe funding model compliant with Subsidy Control and other
regulations?

Deliverability e Have procurement options been considered and is there a clear
route to successful procurement?
e Are governance and management arrangements in place, and is
there sufficient delivery capacity?
Source: SQW

[t will be important that the action plan is seen as a dynamic document and that it is regularly
updated by partners. In broad terms, projects include:

e Region-wide initiatives to build capacity to take advantage of the opportunities
identified in the Plan. These are highlighted within each Mission, and include:

> Building capacity and expertise to maximise South West Wales’ ‘net zero’ potential

> The creation of a ‘virtual innovation agency’ to coordinate and galvanise links
between industry and the knowledge base, especially as European funding comes to
an end

> Support at scale for enterprise and entrepreneurship

> Public investment in the commercial property offer, to enable investment, business
growth and greater environmental sustainability

> Delivering a coordinated approach to investment marketing and support, linked with
the ‘experience’ economy.

e High profile strategic capital investments, such as the Swansea Bay and South West
Metro

7.4 Major local projects contributing to the overall objectives and Missions. Not all will directly
benefit all parts of the region. However, in aggregate they will offer substantial regional
benefit.

Funding the Plan: A longer-term investment fund

7.5 Funding to take forward the Regional Economic Delivery Plan and its component projects will
come from multiple sources, and some individual funding packages are likely to be complex.
At the time of writing, there is some uncertainty regarding future funding, as European
sources (historically an important part of the funding mix in South West Wales) draw to a
close. However, potential sources may include:

e Private investment, especially in bringing forward some of the energy related investments
set out in relation to Mission 1, and in respect of major regeneration and development
schemes

s QW Page 51 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



41

e The proposed Shared Prosperity Fund (or alternative successors to the European
Structural Funds)

e Joint investment across the local authorities, or between the local authorities and the
Welsh Government

e UK Government funds (such as the Strength in Places Fund and the Levelling Up Fund).

Key action areas

e We will seek to secure a devolved regional Investment Fund

The nature of the funding sources identified above will change over time. However, given the
scale of the opportunity (and the regional challenge) in South West Wales, we will seek to
secure a devolved regional investment fund, which would offer the region the ability to lever
in additional funding and bring projects forward on a flexible basis. Such a fund could be
structured to give a partial financial return on investment, as well as an economic and social
return, depending on the nature of the project. This would require investment expertise and
capacity, but could lead to the development of a regional portfolio of projects, derived from the
emerging project pipeline and building on the successful implementation of the existing City
Deal. Currently, the projects within the pipeline have a total value of around £3 billion over the
coming decade: while costs will be determined through the business case process, this
provides an indication of the scale of the challenge and opportunity ahead.

Monitoring progress

7.6 Our proposed projects are all currently at different stages of development. Through the
business case process, we will set out a series of performance indicators against which
progress can be monitored. These are likely to include:

Table 7-2: Indicative performance measures

Indicator Description

Private investment Additional private investment secured in the region as a result of
public support through the REDP

Gross value added Estimated additional GVA generated as a result of investment

Firm creation and survival | New business starts as a result of REDP-backed activity and survival
rates over time

Jobs Jobs created and safeguarded as a result of investment. The REDP
emphasises the quality of jobs (in line with the Economic Contract)
and this should be reflected in the performance measure (e.g.,
employment at or above Real Living Wage and sustained over time).

s QW Page 52 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



7.7

7.8

Indicator Description

Access to employment People entering employment (or increasing hours) as a result of
intervention

Innovation Research and development into new products, goods and services as

aresult of intervention.
Adoption of ‘new to the firm’ products or processes as a result of

intervention
Carbon reductions CO2 savings as a result of investment
Modal shift Increased journeys on public transport/ increased use of active

travel as a result of investment.

Visitor spend Increased visitor spend as a result of investment
Source: SQW

Governance

The Regional Economic Delivery Plan will be ‘owned’ and overseen by the South West Wales
Corporate Joint Committee (CJC). This will be one of four CJCs established in Wales under
new legislation, enabling the constituent local authorities to exercise joint functions relating
to strategic planning, transport and measures that will improve the economic wellbeing of
their regions.

Supporting the CJC, the Regional Regeneration Directors will keep track of progress and will
be responsible for developing business cases, securing investment and ensuring delivery on
the CJC’s behalf. It will be important to secure sufficient capacity — within individual partner
authorities and jointly - to do this, given the scale of the opportunities and challenges. The
CJC will also establish mechanisms for a strong non-government voice (e.g., from business and
the third sector) in influencing priorities and maintaining oversight.

42

s QW Page 53 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



Annex A: Summary SWOT analysis

A.1 The Evidence and Strategic Landscape Review prepared to inform this Plan contained an
analysis of the region’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. This formed the

basis for the analysis within Chapter 2 of the Plan, and is summarised below:

Table A-1: Summary SWOT analysis
Strengths Weaknesses

SQwW

Nationally and internationally significant
university research assets, with a strong
record of industrial collaboration in the
region and recent and planned investment
in new university facilities

Outstanding natural environment,
supporting quality of life and a distinctive
location proposition for visitors and
investors

Relatively strong record in job generation
and in increasing economic activity

Some established sectoral strengths (e.g.,
engineering and advanced manufacturing;
food production)

Some major site development opportunities
Growing and diverse SME base
Community strengths and capacity and
strong sense of identity

Talent pool generated by the region’s
universities and further education system;
opportunity to retain and grow the skilled
workforce and business stock
Opportunities for growth in areas of activity
relevant to the region’s historic strengths
(e.g., advanced manufacturing) and in
current research and technology
capabilities

Opportunity for location-specific growth in
the energy sector and in decarbonisation
more broadly

Distance might become less important as
remote working becomes ‘normal’
(potentially increasing the appeal of SW
Wales’ quality of life offer and helping to
change perceptions

Closeness to the natural environment and
ability to offer unique sporting, cultural and
environmental offer - helping to retain and
attract young and talented people

Page 54

Projected decline in working age population
and rising dependency ratio

Relatively low productivity, reflected in
relatively low wages

Relative peripherality, leading to weak
transport and digital connections in some
places, and viability constraints on physical
developments

Few large firms and company headquarters
Some constraints on firm expansion, linked
with workforce skills shortfalls (although
qualifications levels are rising) and limited
commercial property options

Market change impacting on viability and
vitality of town and city centres

Persistent concentrations of disadvantage

High carbon intensity of part of the
industrial base

Risk of loss of major employers, with
potentially significant labour and spatial
impacts

Risk of outflow of talent and of younger
workers, if there are insufficient
opportunities locally

Wider Brexit-related uncertainties relating
to export markets, port-related activity and
future farm payments

Impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic,
including higher unemployment as
mitigation measures wind down and
accelerate changes in the role of High
Street/ town centre functions

Risk that existing inequalities could be
exacerbated.

A-1

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



A-2

Strengths

Opportunities to build on a track record of
collaboration between the public sector,
academia and industry

Potentially significant infrastructure
investments (e.g., Swansea Bay Metro)
Economic policy innovation in Welsh policy
context

Major site opportunities (e.g., Baglan
Energy Park) and ambitious plans for
investment and development, including as
part of Swansea Bay City Deal
Opportunities for business innovation

Weaknesses

SQwW

Page 55

Source: SQW

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



B-1

Annex B: Well-being of Future Generations Act
assessment

Contribution to the Well-being Goals

B.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (WFGA) identifies seven Well-being
Goals: a Prosperous Wales; a Resilient Wales; a Healthier Wales; a More Equal Wales; a Wales
of Cohesive Communities; a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language; and a
Globally Responsible Wales. Guidance on the application of the WFGA states that policy
should seek to contribute to all seven Well-being Goals, not just the one that most closely
approximates to the central purpose of the initiative.

B.2 The table below summaries how this Plan contributes to the Well-being Goals:

Table B-1: Contribution of the REDP to the Well-being Goals

A Prosperous Wales Direct contribution
The Plan contributes to increasing productivity and economic growth, to
support the creation and safeguarding of more, better paid jobs,
opportunities for business starts and growth, and further links between
the knowledge base and industry.

A Resilient Wales Direct contribution
The Plan places an increased emphasis on economic sustainability
through focus on the need to decarbonise the economy; resilience to
future technology change through emphasis on responding to and
harnessing digitalisation

A Healthier Wales Indirect contribution
The Plan is not directly concerned with health matters. However, greater
prosperity (especially where more equally distributed) leads to better
health outcomes. The Plan also notes the importance of the health and
care sector and the opportunity to link it with economic growth.

A More Equal Wales Direct contribution
The Plan recognises the need to build an ‘inclusive growth’ model into the
strategy, via efforts to support skills outcomes, resilience to automation,
or mechanisms to support greater wealth retention within the

community
A Wales of Cohesive Indirect contribution
Communities Better economic inclusion outcomes should improve cohesion, where

linked with programmes and mechanisms that focus on local community
involvement and engagement.

A Wales of Vibrant Indirect contribution
Culture and Thriving | Measures to support the growth of the creative economy (including
Welsh Language associated with the Welsh language) should directly support, and could

be an important part of the SW Wales investment proposition. More

S QW Page 56 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



B-2

Goal Contribution

broadly, the Plan seeks to support the economic vibrancy of the region,
including principally Welsh-speaking communities.

A Globally
Responsible Wales

Indirect contribution

Achieving over time a decarbonised growth model will contribute to this
The Plan also highlights openness to new ideas (and investment) from
elsewhere

Delivering against the National Well-being Indicators

B.3 The Welsh Government has adopted 46 National Indicators, against which progress against
the goals of the Well-being of Future Generations Act can be measured. As set out in the core
of the REDP, while increasing productivity (gross value added per filled job, or hour worked)
is an important measure, success will be measured against a number of other indicators as
well. The key relevant indicators are listed below (with the number against each one
corresponding to the indicator number published in the Welsh Government list), along with

a description of how the Ambitions and Missions in the Plan are likely to contribute to their

achievement:

Table B-2: Assessment of contribution to meeting the National Well-being Indicators

Indicator

04. Levels of nitrogen dioxide
pollution in the air

08. Percentage with adults with
qualifications at different levels of
the National Qualifications
Framework

09. Gross value added per hour
worked relative to UK average

10. Gross disposable household
income per head

11. Percentage of businesses which
are innovation active

12. Capacity (MW) of renewable
energy equipment installed

16. Percentage of people in
employment who are on permanent

SQwW

Route to impact: Enabled through...

Large scale decarbonisation (Mission 1)

Measures to raise the supply of workforce skills, and
improved engagement with employers, over time (across
all Missions)

Measures to raise demand for sKills (across all Missions,
but especially relevant to Missions 2 and 1)

All Missions. This is a measure of productivity, which the
Plan overall seeks to address. Note however that ‘success’
in achieving a relative measure in respect of the rest of the
UK depends on the pace of growth elsewhere in the UK
(hence the challenges in ‘closing the gap’ without very
large-scale investment)

All Missions. Note however that this data is not available at
the South West Wales geography (it is published at ITL 1
and 2)

Measures to increase interaction between business and
the knowledge base, and to strengthen the innovation
ecosystem (principally Mission 2)

Developing our renewable energy potential (Mission 1)

Measures to increase economic activity and the supply of
higher paid employment. Delivered across all Missions.

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

Page 57



B-3

Indicator

contracts (or on temporary contracts

and not seeking permanent
employment) and who earn more
than 2/3 of the UK median wage)

18. Percentage of people living in
households in income poverty
relative to the UK median

21. Percentage of people in
employment

22. Percentage of people in
education, employment or training
measured for different age groups

26. Percentage of people satisfied
with their area as a place to live

33. Percentage of properties with
adequate energy performance.

42. Emissions of greenhouse gases
within Wales

SQwW

Route to impact: Enabled through...

Measures to increase access to employment, especially at
higher rates of pay. Across all Missions

Key measure of economic success; relevant to all Missions

Measures to improve access to, and demand for, education
and training (across all Measures)

Consequential measure arising from the success of
measures to improve ‘quality of place’ (especially relevant
to Measure 3)

Measures to achieve a ‘net zero’ economy and to improve
the energy efficiency of the housing stock as part of that
(Mission 1)

Measures to support decarbonisation (Measure 1)

South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan

Page 58



C-1

Annex C: Developing the Plan: The process

C.1 The Regional Economic Delivery Plan was

i ) Figure C-1: Developing the Plan:
developed in 2021 with the support of SQW,

) Phases
through a sequential process that worked
from a fresh analysis of the economic Phase I:
evidence to identify the key opportunities and Developing the evidence base

challenges facing the region, and based on

that, the Ambitions and Missions reflected in
the Plan: Phase Il:
Strategic Framework

e Phase I resulted in the development of a
detailed Evidence and Strategic
Landscape Review. This provides an Phase IlI:
overview of the region’s economy and the Action planning
policy context, informing an overall SWOT
analysis. The Evidence and Strategic
Landscape Review has been produced as a Phase IV:
separate supporting document and Finalising the REDP

informed the analysis in Chapter 2 of this
Plan.

e Based on the outcomes of Phase I, Phase II involved the preparation of a ‘strategic
framework’ for the Plan, which identified the set of Ambitions and Missions that we have
set out. As part of this, we analysed the outcomes of the SWOT analysis to consider the
region’s distinctive challenges, and we developed a series of future scenarios.

e InPhaselll, we developed an initial pipeline of projects to meet the goals of the Ambitions
and Missions. This involved a ‘call for proposals’ with the South West Wales local
authorities and other stakeholders, and the development of a Project Pipeline
Supplement, which will be kept ‘live’, as set out in Chapter 7.

e Based on the outcomes of the preceding phases, Phase IV involved the finalisation of the

Plan, which was produced in draft in August 2021.

Consultation and engagement

C.2 The development of the Plan was led by the South West Wales local authorities, and regular
dialogue took place with a steering group involving the four authorities and the Welsh
Government, and with the Regional Directors. The strategic framework and contents of the
Plan was also considered by South West Wales Leaders and Chief Executives.

In developing the Plan, consultation took place with over 50 stakeholders from business, local
and Welsh national government, leaders within the region’s Enterprise Zones and local

s QW Page 59 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



C-2

business partnerships, and the third sector. This included bilateral consultations throughout
the process; discussions at county-level economic partnership boards, the Regional Learning
and Skills Partnership, and the Economic Strategy Group of the Swansea Bay City Deal; and a
stakeholder consultation workshop which took place in June 2021.

S QW Page 60 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan



Page 61



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form.

Which service area and directorate are you from?
Service Area: Planning & City Regeneration
Directorate: Place

Q1 (a) What are you screening for relevance?

] New and revised policies, practices or procedures

] Service review, re-organisation or service changes/reductions, which affect the wider community, service
users and/or staff

[] Efficiency or saving proposals

] Setting budget allocations for new financial year and strategic financial planning

[] New project proposals affecting staff, communities or accessibility to the built environment, e.g., new
construction work or adaptations to existing buildings, moving to on-line services, changing location

[]  Large Scale Public Events

[] Local implementation of National Strategy/Plans/Legislation

[] Strategic directive and intent, including those developed at Regional Partnership Boards and Public Services
Board, which impact on a public bodies functions

=4 Medium to long term plans (for example, corporate plans, development plans, service delivery and
improvement plans)

] Setting objectives (for example, well-being objectives, equality objectives, Welsh language strategy)

[] Major procurement and commissioning decisions

] Decisions that affect the ability (including external partners) to offer Welsh language opportunities and

services
(b) Please name and fully describe initiative here:

The new South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan (REDP) will replace the current
Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy as the strategic framework for
economic regeneration at the regional and local level. The REDP has been produced by the
four local authorities in South West Wales in partnership with the Welsh Government. It sets out
how we will build on our distinctive strengths and opportunities over the next ten years to
develop a more prosperous and resilient South West Wales economy.

Preparation of the REDP included a thorough analysis of the evidence base on the region’s
economy, labour market and infrastructure to determine its strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats. Extensive consultation was undertaken with stakeholders across the
region. Development of the plan also included consideration of national, regional and local
policy context including the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act, decarbonisation and the
achievement of net zero by 2050, technological and demographic change and Brexit.

To help plan for the future, the REDP sets out three ‘Ambitions’ which set out the nature of the
South West Wales economy that we want to work towards. These are:

e Resilient and sustainable

e Enterprising and ambitious

e Balanced and inclusive

The ambitions are supported by three complementary Missions, which will guide activity over

the next ten years:

e Mission 1 — Establishing South West Wales as a UK leader in renewable energy and the
development of a net zero economy

e Mission 2 — Building a strong, resilient and embedded business base

e Mission 3 — Growing and sustaining the ‘experience’ offer

Page 62



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Q2 What is the potential impact on the following: the impacts below could be positive
(+) or negative (-)
High Impact  Medium Impact Low Impact Needs further
investigation

Children/young people (0-18)
Older people (50+)

Any other age group

Future Generations (yet to be born)
Disability

Race (including refugees)
Asylum seekers

Gypsies & travellers

Religion or (non-)belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Gender reassignment

Welsh Language
Poverty/social exclusion
Carers (inc. young carers)
Community cohesion
Marriage & civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity

L]

N I I
O O I I
N I = gy
O O I I
DAL IR ] *+
O I I

O

Q3 What involvement has taken place/will you undertake e.g.
engagement/consultation/co-productive approaches?
Please provide details below — either of your activities or your reasons for not
undertaking involvement

The REDP was prepared by the four local authorities in South West Wales in partnership with
Welsh Government. In preparing the REDP, consultation has taken place with over 50
stakeholders from business, local authorities and Welsh Government, Universities, Further
Education Colleges, leaders within the region’s Enterprise Zones and local business
partnerships, and the third sector.

Consultation has included one-to-one consultations throughout the process; discussions at
county-level economic partnership boards including Regeneration Swansea, the Regional
Learning and Skills Partnership, and the Economic Strategy Group of the Swansea Bay City
Deal; and a stakeholder consultation workshop which took place in June 2021.

Q4 Have you considered the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 in the
development of this initiative:

a) Overall does the initiative support our Corporate Plan’s Well-being Objectives when considered

together?
Yes [X] No[ |
b) Does the initiative consider maximising contribution to each of the seven national well-being goals?
Yes [X] No[ |
c) Does the initiative apply each of the five ways of working?
Yes [X] No[ | Page 63



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

d) Does the initiative meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs?

Yes [X] No|[ ]

Q5 What is the potential risk of the initiative? (Consider the following impacts — equality,
socio-economic, environmental, cultural, legal, financial, political, media, public
perception etc...)

High risk Medium risk Low risk
[] X

Q6  Will this initiative have an impact (however minor) on any other Council service?

X Yes [ ] No If yes, please provide details below
The REDP will provide strategic direction for economic regeneration activities undertaken by the
Council

Q7 What is the cumulative impact of this proposal on people and/or communities
when considering all the impacts identified within the screening and any other key
decisions affecting similar groups/ service users made by the organisation?

(You may need to discuss this with your Service Head or Cabinet Member to consider more widely if this
proposal will affect certain groups/ communities more adversely because of other decisions the
organisation is making. For example, financial impact/poverty, withdrawal of multiple services and
whether this is disadvantaging the same groups, e.g., disabled people, older people, single parents (who
are mainly women), etc.)

The REDP sets the strategic direction for economic regeneration regionally and locally over the
next ten years. The REDP aims to create an economy that is resilient and sustainable;
enterprising and ambitious; and balance and inclusive. It is expected that it will have a positive
impact on people and communities in Swansea by improving economic performance and
creating sustainable employment opportunities. In line with the Equality Act 2010 and Public
Sector Equality Duty, due regard will be given to the impact on protected groups in the
development and delivery of all the actions that flow from the REDP. All actions will be screened
and full l1As will be undertaken if appropriate in the future as the actions progress.

Page 64



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Outcome of Screening

Q8 Please describe the outcome of your screening below:

e Summary of impacts identified and mitigation needed (Q2)
The impacts of the REDP are expected to be positive and are low to medium in nature.

e Summary of involvement (Q3)
Consultation with public, private and voluntary sector partners locally and regionally,
including the Regeneration Swansea Partnership, has helped shape ambitions and
missions of the REDP.

e WFG considerations (Q4)
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act has been considered throughout the preparation
of the REDP. Annex B of the Plan sets out the contribution to the wellbeing goals.

e Any risks identified (Q5)
The REDP is expected to be low risk. In delivering the actions that flow from the Plan, any
risks will be considered at a project level in the normal way.

e Cumulative impact (Q7)

The REDP sets the strategic direction for economic regeneration regionally and locally over the
next ten years. The REDP aims to create an economy that is resilient and sustainable;
enterprising and ambitious; and balance and inclusive. It is expected that it will have a positive
impact on people and communities in Swansea by improving economic performance and
creating sustainable employment opportunities. In line with the Equality Act 2010 and Public
Sector Equality Duty, due regard will be given to the impact on protected groups in the
development and delivery of all the actions that flow from the REDP. All actions will be screened
and full l1As will be undertaken if appropriate in the future as the actions progress.

(NB: This summary paragraph should be used in the relevant section of corporate report)
[_] Full lIA to be completed

X Do not complete IIA - please ensure you have provided the relevant information above to support this
outcome

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before
obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via
email.

Screening completed by:

Name: Clare James

Job title: Economic Development Manager

Date: 3.12.21

Approval by Head of Service:

Name: Phil Holmes

Position: Head of Planning and City Regeneration
Date: 9.12.21

Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Page 65


mailto:accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

(¢
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

/

Report of the Convener

Development and Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel —
8 March 2022

Project Update Report

Purpose: The Project Update Report will provide information and
update on the regeneration programme and projects in
Swansea

Councillors are Review the departmental ‘Dashboard’ report and

being asked to: feedback any comments to the relevant Cabinet
Member.

Lead Councillor:  Councillor Robert Francis-Davies, Cabinet Member for
Investment, Regeneration & Tourism

Lead Officer Huw Mowbray, Development and Physical Regeneration
Strategic Manager

1. Background

1.1 The Development and Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel
meets every two months to review the ‘health’ of the City Centre and
regeneration projects within Swansea.

1.2  As part of the monitoring aspect of the Panel, a departmental ‘Project
Update Report’ is made available for review and scrutiny. This report
contains updates on the regeneration programme and various projects
throughout Swansea and provides detail and timelines where relevant.

1.3 The Panel are asked to review the report and ask any questions which
they may have on the information provided. The Panel may then follow
up the meeting with a letter to the relevant Cabinet Member to convey
its views and any recommendations.

Background Papers: None

Appendices: Regeneration Programme / Project Update Dashboard Report

Page 66




(S
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

o —————

City Regeneration Programme Board — Summary Report
Steering s

Group Lead Martin Nicholls

Reporting February 2022

Period

Project: Copr Bay

= Handover of the scheme is to be the w/c 21% February. Council officers are aligned with two days of
familiarisation on the 21 and 22" February. Test event tickets for Friday 25" and Saturday 26™ went
on sale.

= |[ssues still persist with labour availability.

= Positive discussions have also taken place with BGCL addressing the outstanding construction
issues.

Project: Swansea Central North

Masterplan
= RIBA Stage 1 proposals are expected to be submitted shortly.
= RIBA Stage 2 - Target date October 2022.
Office Hubs
= Meetings with potential tenants in progress to establish requirements.
» Risk - Decision making timelines and governance of interested tenants could impact office hub
delivery if timelines are not aligned

Project: 71/72 The Kingsway

Progress

» Piling operations ongoing, with relocation of access ramp undertaken to enable this to progress. A
temporary closure of the westbound lane on The Kingsway was required to enable work to continue
further to Picton Lane access being closed by Hacer

» Picton Lane closure originally agreed between 19/01/22 to 01/02/22, extended to 04/02/22.

= w/c 07/02 required overnight closures of junction of Plymouth St/ Oxford St to enable site set up.
Weather constraints prevented its completion - additional day on the 22/02 agreed.

Programme - started 22/11/21 — projected completion 08/23. No change.

Commercial updates - Avison Young/JLL and |[Cushman’s reviewed draft HoT's for first tenant for
prospective flex tenants. Joint agents preparing lettings strategy.

Barclays Bank — BYUK programme for delivery unacceptable. Alternate procurement option required to
meet ERDF funding programme requirement.

Project: Wind Street

= Nominated auto bollard sub-contractor still to return to site — now scheduled for early March.
= Operational meeting held with traders/SWP representative

Page 67


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/

(S
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

o —————

Project: TAN15 Development and Flood Risk Project Lead: TE, DH, GE

Strategic Flood consequence assessment (SFCA)- SC notified WG on intentions regarding
preparation of Regional SW joint stage 1 SFCA , as required by WG 31.01.22

1.SFCA stage 1 for SW regional authorities timescale 04.03.22- 04.07.22. The Stage 1 SFCA brings
together the various policies, plans, strategies relevant to a high-level overview of flood risk. Not
expected to enable progress with key issues of TAN15, but demonstrates a co-ordinated and joint
working approach aligning with WGovt requirements and aligning with SE Wales approach.

2. Swansea /River Tawe Appraisal Timescale 07.03.22-18.06.22. A more detailed assessment to
highlight 'real life' issues presented by the new TAN15 to WG. Key outputs to include:

a. Development of a detailed understanding of the flood risk to strategic development sites
along the River Tawe (City Centre, SAL, Tawe Riverside and Swansea Vale).

b. Assess compliance with the new TAN15.

c. Undertake high level testing of flood mitigation options that may enable TAN15
compliance.

d. Identity other potential options for managing flood risk and development, including
potential changes in TAN15 policy/guidance

e. Presentation and workshop of findings

Project: Castle Square

Water Jets/Fountain Options for scale and location of water fountain feature, pavilion B design and scope of
lighting agreed.

WG Transforming Towns Grant — Formal offer letter received for eligible funding /spend during
2021/22.

Leaf Boat- meeting arranged with original artist Amber Hiscott to discuss options for de
commissioning/relocation. Feasibility study required to look at relocation options.

Heritage consultation Meeting held with Cadw- to discuss update on scheme and heritage Impact
assessment.

Landscape Strategy- Outline design being updated.

Project: Shaping Swansea

Strategic Partnership Agreement, agreed subject to Legal approval and then to be signed
Once signed progress can start on schemes.

Project: Community Hub

Emergency enabling works completed. Phase 2 to start end of February.
Paper Storage

Not enough future physical storage to relocate out of the Civic Centre, looking at scanning options,
internal/external options being looked at.

Project: Palace Theatre

80% cost certainty expected before the end of the month where further review can be undertaken on a
more definitive position. In the meantime, VE options are being reviewed, without compromising
heritage, end product quality, and let ability.

Page 68


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/

(S
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

o —————

Project: Skyline

Land Assembly Strategy- On going discussions continue.
Skyline — positive discussions continue.

Project: Swansea Vale

» The initial proposed site at Swansea Vale is still a front runner for P&R relocation.

Project: Repurposing

St David's Place: Preparatory/soft strip works to Former Mecca bingo being costed. Concept

and designs for building to be included in Swansea Central North stage 1 submission

Swansea Market: improvements works continue. Improvement works to the market entrances and
Portland Street public realm improvements to be aligned.

Next Block: funding and planning permission secured for conversion of upper floors into residential and
refurbishment of commercial units

Castle Cinema: planning application received for residential units

Primark: Discussions with owners continue.

Public Realm:

Portland Street / Oxford Street Junction: Gl Infrastructure funding application submitted.

Initial proposal being developed. Aim for deliver in FY22/23.

St Marys Place: Concept and designs for building to be included in Swansea Central North stage 1
submission. Traffic circulation to be considered incorporation with the Castle Square works.

The ‘Lanes’: investigating funding and delivery options

Marina Pocket Squares: investigating funding and delivery options

Spring Clean and BAU improvements: ongoing. New street furniture installed, including cycle racks.

Page 69


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/

Agenda Iltem 8

(-
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

B e

Report of the Cabinet Member for Economy, Finance & Strategy

Development & Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel —
8 March 2022

Impact of Brexit on Rural Development Programme
and Funding Update (Post-2023)

Purpose: The report presents the Impact of Brexit on Rural
Development Programme and Funding Update (Post-
2023).

Report Author: Paul Relf
Finance Officer:  Aimee Dyer
Legal Officer: Debbie Smith

Access to Services Rhian Millar
Officer:

For Information

1. Background

1.1  This report summarises briefly the impact of Brexit on the Rural
Development Plan and post 2023 funding of the same.

2. Impact of Brexit on the Rural Development Plan

2.1  The current Rural Development Plan is part financed by the European
Union through the European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development
and Welsh Government. The programme period is 2014-2020 with a
further 3 calendar years permitted to December 2023 for final spend of
funding allocations and completion of projects.

2.2 The programme in Swansea is coordinated by the Economic
Development & External Funding team, working with external
stakeholders through the Swansea Rural Development Partnership. The
latter has been in existence since 2006, helping to manage successive
iterations of the Rural Development Programme.

Page 70




2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

4.1

Previous versions of the programme in Wales operated both as a more
general economic regeneration programme with local access to capital
and revenue funding, and a strand of work referred to as ‘LEADER’ for
revenue support to pilot new approaches to balanced rural economic and
community development.

The current 2014-2020 phase has been limited to the LEADER strand of
work, for which several funding windows have been run over the lifetime
of the programme with a funding window currently open for a small
number of new projects. 26 community projects have been supported to
date, 10 of which are still active, and 16 have been completed.
Programme spend to date is £970,107. The team also sign post potential
applicants to other funding sources where applicable. Recent new
projects include Gower Ambassadors project, Gower Pilgrimage Way
and Festival, and Mapping Local Produce & Shorten Supply Chains
in Rural Swansea. Further information on all projects can be obtained
from the team, and regular e-newsletters are issued.

Post-Brexit the existing funding commitment from EU funds and Welsh
Government is being honoured to December 2023. There is no direct
impact on the existing funding mechanism which will continue in its
current format until existing funding expires in December 2023.

Funding update

Under the EU 7 + 3 year funding cycles, we would now be in the 2021-
2027 programme cycle with a new Rural Development programme
either in place or having just been launched. Currently there is no
specific provision for a replacement Rural Development programme.
The only potential option available for a similar successor programme
would be to submit projects with a rural focus under the emerging
priorities of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. This does not appear to
ring fence any funds for rural development based on initial information
available and would require design of new bespoke projects at regional
or local level.

Integrated Assessment Implications

The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty
and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and
must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Acts.

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.

e Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Page 71



4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1.1

6.1

e Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-
economic disadvantage

e Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language

e Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

e Ensure that the needs of the present are met without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that
public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development.
Sustainable development means the process of improving the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by
taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development
principle, aimed at achieving the ‘well-being goals’.

Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid
due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues
and priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community
cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the
Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language.

All projects and initiatives referenced in this report are subject to their
own Integrated Impact Assessment.

Legal Implications

As this report is for information there are no additional legal implications
falling on the authority.

Financial Implications

As this report is for information there are no additional financial
implications falling on the authority.

Background papers: None

Appendices: None

Page 72



Agenda Item 9

K(/fé- Cyngor Abertawe
k Swansea Council

f

To: Please ask for: Overview & Scrutiny
. . . Gofynnwch am:
Councillor David Hopkins Direct Line:
Cabinet Member for Delivery and Liinell Uniongyrochol: 01792 637314
Operations e-Mail scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk
e-Bost:
And Dat
D; i 7 February 2022

Cllr Robert Francis-Davies
Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism

BY EMAIL
CC: Cabinet Members

Summary: This is a letter from the Development and Regeneration Scrutiny
Performance Panel, following the meeting of the Panel on 25" January 2022. It
covers the Foreshore Developments.

Dear Councillor Hopkins and Councillor Robert Francis-Davies,

On the 25" January, the Panel met to hear a verbal update regarding the current
position of Foreshore Developments in Swansea. The Panel are grateful for your
attendance and input at this meeting. We also thank Geoff Bacon, Head of Property
Services, and The Leader for their attendance and contributions.

The Panel heard a limited overview of the current position, in relation to the existing
Swansea Bay Strategy. It was agreed that the Panel write to the Cabinet Members
outlining specific areas of interest, a response to which could then be submitted to us
in camera if appropriate. Our main queries centre on the following points:

1. Please may we have an update regarding the marketing of foreshore sites, and
in particular any update regarding interest shown in the Civic Centre site.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SAL1 4PE

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk

| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &’r person uchod
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above

Page 73


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/

K(//% Cyngor Abertawe
\Y Swansea Council
/

2. Are there currently plans for the Council to re-develop the Civic Centre site
should there be no interest shown by outside parties?

3. Inrelation to the Civic Centre, it is understood that there are sublet agreements
in place with external parties. What is the time span of these agreements and
when are they due to end?

4. Inthe Council’s study that was carried out with the Welsh Government in 2008,
we understand that three sites were considered to be very important (Sketty
Lane car park, Blackpill and Knab Rock). Are there currently any active
enquiries about these sites?

Whilst we understand the commercial sensitivity of possible negotiations surrounding
development sites, we as a Scrutiny Panel would appreciate updates regarding these
important assets and would welcome a future meeting in closed session.

We are interested in any thoughts you may have on the contents of this letter. We
would be grateful if you could please provide a written response to the above points
by 28™ February 2022.

Yours sincerely,

Councillor Jeff Jones
Convener, Development and Regeneration Performance Panel
X cllr.jeff.jones@swansea.gov.uk

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SAL1 4PE

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk

| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &’r person uchod
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above

Page 74


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/
mailto:cllr.jeff.jones@swansea.gov.uk

Cabinet Office
(//5- Cyngor Abertawe The Guildhall,

& Swansea Council Swansea, SAL 4PE

‘:_/—_\ www.swansea.gov.uk

Councillor Jeff Jones Please ask for: Councillor David Hopkins
Convener, Development and Regeneration Direct Line: 01792 63 6141
Performance Panel E-Mail: clir.david.hopkins@swansea.gov.uk
Our Ref: DH/RFD/IG
(VIA EMAIL) Your Ref:
Date: 15 February 2022

Dear Clir. Jones,

Re: - Response following the Development and Regeneration Scrutiny
Performance Panel on 25th January 2022 regarding the Foreshore
Developments.

1. Please may we have an update regarding the marketing of foreshore
sites, and in particular any update regarding interest shown in the
Civic Centre site?

As was referred to in Scrutiny, officers are currently working on a revised
Swansea Bay Strategy to review and update the existing 2008 document
(attached). As this will be a new policy then the appropriate mechanism to
develop is via the Policy Development Committee albeit it is fully accepted the
scrutiny will have a key role in this process prior to any cabinet decisions being
made. With regards specifically to the Civic Centre this significant site forms part
of the development partnership recently announced with Urban Splash and
therefore no future marketing is proposed.

2. Are there currently plans for the Council to re-develop the Civic
Centre site should there be no interest shown by outside parties?

As stated above the Civic Centre forms part of the development partnership
recently announced with Urban Splash.

3. Inrelation to the Civic Centre, it is understood that there are sublet
agreements in place with external parties. What is the time span of
these agreements and when are they due to end?

All third party agreements have been documented to ensure compatibility with
any future proposals.

To receive this information in alternative format, or in We'?s‘?'gﬁlgar’se contact the above. ¢ ™Y, INVESTORS | BUDDSODDWYR
v,

| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch a’r person uchod. “_« IN PEOPLE | MEWN POBL


mailto:cllr.david.hopkins@swansea.gov.uk

4. In the Council’s study that was carried out with the Welsh
Government in 2008, we understand that three sites were considered
to be very important (Sketty Lane car park, Blackpill and Knab Rock).
Are there currently any active enquiries about these sites?

There are currently no active enquiries on these sites, however, they are part of
the investigations on the emerging revised Swansea Bay Strategy.

Yours sincerely

Cx

Y CYNGHORYDD/COUNCILLOR DAVID HOPKINS
AELOD Y CABINET DROS CYFLAWNI A GWEITHREDIADAU
CABINET MEMBER FOR DELIVERY & OPERATIONS

T

Y CYNGHORYDD/COUNCILLOR ROBERT FRANCIS-DAVIES
AELOD Y CABINET DROS FUDDSODDI, ADFYWIO A THWRISTIAETH
CABINET MEMBER FOR INVESTMENT, REGENERATION & TOURISM

¢

& /f9~ Cyngor Abertawe
k Swansea Council

f

LA

Page 76


https://democracy.swansea.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=206&LLL=1

Action Plan
Swansea Bay Strategy

28th February 2008

Page 77




Action Plan

White Young Green Planning

21 Park Place, Cardiff CF10 3DQ

T: 029 2072 9000

F: 029 2039 5965 E: planning.cardiff@wyg.com
WWW.Wyg.com

in association with
DTZ Consulting
Report status: Version 1

Date: 27 June 2007
Job number:  A028066rep[2]070627v1.indd

Page 78



Action Plan o #

Q/Mj’m %ﬂs & Upwodaeth Cyniad Cyrey

Wisish Adsernbly Gowsirmiment

CONTENTS PAGE

1 Introduction 2
1.1 Background 2
1.2 The Study Area 2
1.3 The Brief 2
2 Vision for the Bay 3
21 The Vision 3
2.2 Objectives of the Vision 3
2.3 Delivering the Vision 3
24 Achieving the Initiatives 5

3 Action Plan: Baywide Initiatives 7

3.1 Environment and Landscape Vision 7

3.2 Identity Vision 9

3.3  Accessibility Vision 13

3.4 Quality Vision 15
4 Action Plan: Destinations 19

4.1 City Waterfront 19

4.2 St Helens 21

4.3 Sketty Lane 23

44  Blackpill 25

4.5 Mumbles 27

4.6 Mumbles Pier 31
5 Implementation 33

5.1 Programme 33 This report is copyright:

5.1 Delivery and Implementation Plan 33 (2©00V7Vhite Young Green Consulfing Limited,
6 Ackn owledgements 34 Drawings based upon the Ordnance Survey

map are reproduced with the permission of
Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown
Copyright. White Young Green Consulting
Limited licence number: AR 100017603

Page 79



1. INTRODUCTION

Swansea Bay Strategy is one of a series of interrelated
initiatives that the City and County of Swansea is
developing to improve the long-term performance of
the city and the facilities for residents, visitors and
businesses. The other initiatives are:

+ City Centre Strategic Framework (Roger Tym &
Partners);

+ Tawe Riverside Corridor (Hyder Consulting); and,

+ Swansea Tourism Strategy (Stevens &
Associates).

These studies will provide a framework to guide
development and compliment the SA1 development
and the retail, sports and employment schemes in
Morfa and Swansea Enterprise Park.

White Young Green Planning with sub-consultants
DTZ Consulting were commissioned in January 2006
to prepare a Strategy for Swansea Bay with the aim
of providing a vision for the Bay and an integrated
assessment of its potential for new development and
enhancement.

The Swansea Bay Strategy focuses on the 8.5
kilometres of waterfront of Swansea Bay from the West
Pier in the east to Mumbles Pier in the west. It is an
attractive area of the city offering panoramic views over
the bay and a range of facilities serving residents and
visitors. It demonstrates the very clear connection of
the city’s retail and civic functions to the marina, beach
and waterfront.

The eastern end of the study area includes the land
around the County Council offices and the link up West
Way to the proposed redeveloped bus station. The new
National Maritime Museum and redeveloped Swansea
Leisure Centre are on the north of the Marina close to
the Council offices. The study area does not include
the city centre, River Tawe or the SA1 areas of the city,
which are subject to separate initiatives.

The central area from St Helen’s to Blackpill has a strong
landscape setting, providing amenity space and sports
facilities alongside Swansea University and Singleton
Hospital, which are separated from the waterfront by

the Oystermouth Road dual carriageway. The western
end of the study area includes Oystermouth, Mumbles
and Mumbles Pier, which have a traditional seaside
charm and attractive promenade.

The Brief to Consultants, dated November 2005, stated
that the strategy would consist of three main elements,
comprising:

* A Vision for the Bay, which presents an holistic
view of what it can offer in terms of recreation
and tourism and includes an analysis of
issues, constraints, policy context, extensive
market research and consultations with various
stakeholders, landowners and Council officers;

* An Action Plan, which considers the potential
development at identified key destinations, and
environmental and infrastructure enhancement
proposals between those destinations; and,

* A Delivery and Implementation Plan, which sets
out the potential mechanisms for bringing forward
development and enhancement.

This report is the second part of the study: the Action
Plan, and identifies the projects and initiatives to be
developed in the bay, based upon the key initiatives
identified in the Vision for the Bay report.

The report sets out the vision for the bay and
describes how this will be implemented through six key
destinations and a bay wide set of initiatives. An action
plan is then provided for the bay as a whole and for
each destination.

Page 80



2. VISION FOR THE BAY

Swansea is unique in Wales as being a city located
directly onthe waterfront, with miles of accessible golden
sand and a gently curving bay offering distant vistas to
picturesque destinations. Yet the arc of Swansea Bay,
although providing an attractive amenity area for the
city, does not provide the quality destinations required
of a truly European city.

Over the last 40 years the area has seen minor
changes, whilst other parts of the city have undergone
major regeneration. The special character of the city is
partly derived from its strategic location on the bay and
relationship to the waterfront, but little has been done
to enhance or develop this characteristic.

If Swansea is to take its place as a European waterfront
city, it must make the most of its strategic assets. The
bay is Swansea’s premier strategic asset and it must
play a more positive role in the economic development
and vitality that the city has to offer. The vision for
Swansea Bay is therefore set out below.

The bay provides the recreational space for the city.
It is the place where people should be able to relax
and unwind or re-energise themselves through
sport. It should be the destination for culture, art,
good food, quality places and a place to meet
people. The bay should be a symbol of the quality
of life that Swansea can deliver for residents and
visitors. It is city life at the water’s edge.

Sustainability must be at the heart of the revitalisation
of Swansea Bay. The uses, the movement pattern, the
ecology and design of new buildings must address all
aspects of sustainability to ensure that the principles set
out in Planning Policy Wales, Wales Spatial Plan and
Local Agenda 21, and CCS Sustainable Developer’s
Guide are achieved.

Swansea Bay is where city life meets the waters edge
and is a place that will through a high quality and
sustainable environment:

Stimulate: the senses with the sight, sound, taste
and smell of the sea;

Re-energise: the body through activities on the
beach, water and land;

Encourage: new visitors with an exciting range of
attractions;

Inform: through history and the natural
environment;

Celebrate: the achievements of the people of
Swansea; and,

Provide: opportunities for all ages to enjoy the
bay.

The vision will be delivered over the next fifteen years
through a series of initiatives both on a baywide level
and specific to the six key destinations.

Baywide Initiatives

*» Create a unified waterfront park which
extends from Mumbles in the west to the
Tawe Riverside Park in the east, linking the
key destinations.

* Create a unified Swansea Bay identity.

» Celebrate the quality and diversity of the
environment and landscape.

* Improve accessibility from the City Waterfront
to Mumbles Pier.

Page 81



Plan showing the varying character of the Bay and the location of the six key
destinations

I Marth

~ Marina s
*
il .
County Hall .
L D |
, !
p ~
o’ . :
- * i ’
o - " - ‘l
B
“
<
“
3
-
v
“
"
"
b
"
.
"
Water Activity "
“
-
-
N
"
.
"
~
"
Mumbles Pier .
P
= 5
% . g S S aew®®
S L
Y-+

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Destination Initiatives

City Waterfront

Open up County Hall to visitors, introducing
new public facilities.

Connect the city centre to the waterfront.

Redevelop Paxton Street and surplus car park
land.

Create new visitor facilities and beach activity
zone.

Improve properties along Oystermouth Road.

Widen the promenade from County Hall to the
Slip Bridge.

St Helen’s

Prepare a site specific development brief in
consultation with the local community, and
other relevant landowners and stakeholders.

Create new visitor facilities and car parking
next to the beach access.

Sketty Lane

Strengthen the sports village.
Develop a new waterfront park.

Provide visitor facilities supporting adrenaline
beach and water related activities.

Improve pedestrian and cycle access from the
University and boating lake to the waterfront.

Blackpill

Improve links to Clyne Park and Clyne
Gardens.

Improve the Lido as a family visitor attraction.

Create an iconic feature in the design of the
new pedestrian/cycle bridge that signals the
start of Gower.

Mumbles

* Develop Oystermouth Square as a focal point
for retail and visitor activities.

* Enhance Newton Road retail area and
develop a niche retail offer.

* Revitalise the area between Oystermouth
Square and Knab Rock, improving visitor
facilities.

* Enhance Oystermouth Castle and promote as
a visitor attraction.

+ Develop a niche cafe and restaurant market,
focused on locally procured produce.

Mumbles Pier

* Refurbish and redevelop Mumbles Pier as an
improved visitor attraction and venue.

*  Promote new visitor water trips between the
pier and marina.

* Increase the profile of Mumbles Pier, developing
additional family visitor attractions.

* Promote the mixed-use redevelopment of land
fronting the pier and beach area.

Section 3 identifies four key baywide themes
and describes seventeen actions required to
successfully implement the baywide initiatives.
Similarly section 4 describes the various actions
required to implement the initiatives for each
destination.

Page 83



Environment and Landscape Vision Plan

N2

,,.¢ Narth l

Key

® ®® permeabie edge (BW1 and BW4)

Landmark feature 1o provide
visual focus aarund the bay (BW2)

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Action Plan

3. ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE INITIATIVES

Environment and Landscape Vision

Swansea Bay - a unified, high quality contemporary waterfront which extends
from Mumbles in the West to Tawe Riverside Corridor in the East. A place that
will accommodate a wide variety of spaces for multi purpose uses, include
landmark features, open views, protect and enhance environmental quality and
raise awareness of the diversity of habitats.

BW1: Waterfront Park

+ Create a high quality, contemporary Waterfront Park between St Helen’s and
West Cross, which will become an important destination central to the bay,
incorporating the Common and linking directly with the Clyne Valley. The park
will enhance the Oystermouth Road frontage to create a consistent foreshore

appearance.

+ Commission an international design competition for the design of the Waterfront
Park and aspire to the high standards of design and maintenance of other

major European waterfront parks.

*+ Accommodate a variety of spaces that incorporate multi-purpose uses, a
range of activities, and allow for formal and informal play/ active use, ensuring

flexibility is a central design theme.

+ Extend and improve the existing trim trail through the park as a free outdoor

health and fitness facility providing an alternative to the indoor gym.

BW2: Landmark Features and Views

» Create a series of landmark features along the foreshore which form

recognisable markers to destinations, thereby helping to draw the visitor from

one destination to the next.

* Incorporate the landmarks into the lighting strategy to create a legible, safe
promenade for evening use (see action BW6).

* Open up key views across the bay, through rationalisation of planting, and
improve the quality of existing views.

* Maintain clear unimpeded views of the beach and key landmarks.

* Open up views of the beach in key locations between Sketty Lane and
Blackpill to encourage its increased use.

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE K 85

8J0ysalo] aAnoey

sjuiod uonew.oUl JOYISIA

Bumes >|ﬁéd paulejuiew [|spA

e pue| Bunesodioou)

auoAisAs 1o} ‘Lie ognd




sauue) ‘Juoujeas Alo Ajjenpd

sauue) ‘ayolulod Ayjenp

JusLUOlIAUS 8Y) Jnoge BuluiesT

Buo|90Jeg ‘sainjes) Je oljgnd

|oysug ‘A0 e|qibe

BWa3: Natural Environment

Protect, enhance and celebrate the quality and diversity of the natural
environment.

Develop a bay wide approach to create a place where there are rich and
varied ways of learning about and experiencing the natural environment.

Raise awareness of the diverse habitats and species to be found at the
existing attractions of Clyne Valley, the Botanic Gardens, Mumbles Hill Nature
Reserve and bird watching opportunities through a series of information
boards.

BW4: Beach Quality

Deliver and maintain quality, award winning beaches.
Improve existing access to the beach to allow for universal access.

Enhance the edge between the promenade and the beach whilst ensuring
consistency of approach and improving the quality of views of the city from
the beach.

Open up views of the beach in key locations to encourage its increased use.

Raise awareness of the diverse species supported by the mud and sand inter
tidal zone within the SSSI at Blackpill.

BWS5: Flooding

Update Flood Risk Assessment of Swansea Bay to identify the risk of flooding
to the key development sites.

Detailed studies of key development sites will include Flood Risk Assessment.

Page 86



Action Plan

Identity Vision

Swansea Bay - the destination that matters, the playground of the city. Swansea
Bay is one destination with three character areas: the city on the waterfront,

the Waterfront Park and Mumbles waterfront. The design of the public realm,
together with the public art and events strategy, must combine to give a unified
place with specialist character zones.

o Sdd ‘einjuiny yoeag

BW6: Public Realm Strategy

+ Establish a palette of materials and street furniture that provides a consistent
design for the continuous waterfront edge.

+ Create ways of distinguishing between the different character zones of the
bay, empathising the civic, formal edge of the City Waterfront, the softer
natural yet active feel of the waterfront park and the lively, functional
qualities of Mumbles Waterfront.

+ Accommodate passive users, commuters, parades and festivals.
* Adopt a comprehensive management and maintenance programme.

+ Commission a public art strategy to provide a coordinated approach to the
inclusion of public art and maximise its potential benefits in enhancing the
existing identify. Public art should help unify lighting, seating and parking in a
creative way and can involve local community groups and professional artists
to celebrate cultural and historic elements along the bay.

BW?7: Events

» Develop a Bay Events Strategy, and market a calendar of events, with a
local, regional and international flavour.

+ Develop venue spaces along the waterfront capable of hosting a variety of
events, locating Festival and performance space at City Waterfront Plaza, the
Waterfront Park, Singleton Park and Oystermouth Square;

* Spectator space at the bottom of Brynmill Lane, Sketty Lane and Knab Rock;

+ Market space at Oystermouth Square and along the approach to Mumbles
Pier;

+ Exhibition and presentation space at Oystermouth Square and on Mumbles
Pier, and;

+  Community space within the Waterfront Park.

« Establish links with the transport strategy to manage the safe movement and
control of visitor, spectator, local and through traffic.

+ Develop a coordinated approach to bidding, funding and hosting events.
» Promote uses both day and night.

» Provide a year round experience.

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE [AE [ 9]



Identity Vision Plan (BW6, BW7 BWS8)

I Marth

Waterfront
Park

Key
H Character Zones (BWE)

- Festival and
_' performance space (BWT)

Spectator space (BWT)

Community, exhibition
and market space (BWT)

Beacon ghting (BWE)

Light key bulldings /
structures (BW8)

M IBurmination of chff face
{BWE)

* ¥

*




Action Plan

BWS8: Lighting Strategy

Promote a bay wide lighting strategy that links the key destinations in a
coordinated and innovative way.

Minimise potential adverse impact of light production into the night sky, on
nature conservation, residential areas and the road network.

Develop an energy efficient lighting system using advanced technology.

Ensure the ongoing management and monitoring of the lighting strategy
before and after implementation.

Introduce a family of bay wide lighting systems, creating a clutter free
environment that feels safe and secure after dark.

Introduce feature lighting of key buildings for major public landmarks
Consider ways of reinforcing the three distinctive character areas of the bay.

Consider the sensitive introduction of beacon lighting to signal where events
are taking place in and around the bay.

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE K 89

apiskenp ajiseomaN

apeuswold ay) Buoje ‘Bunybl 18N

|oodyoe|g ‘epeuswold 810ys yinos

lo1S1g “8.juso 8y} bunybr]

Sdd ‘yoeag Aedjeq ‘ Bunybig



Bay wide accessibility plan

I Narth

%, ;I Mumbles
2o \ % Pier

Page 90

¢ ...

County Hall

toon?

Key

@ Cycle hire (BWT)
@, Kay land train stop (BWT)
Promenade{BWT)

Promenade widening (BWT)

H High level crossing (BWT)
@ Improved crossings (BWT)

Beach access node (BYWE)
./ Water access point (BW8)
% Boal trips (BW8)
Children’s activity zone (BWS)
Adranaling spors (BWS)
® & & Cycle Route (BW9)
© 0 0 Extended cycle route (BW3)
@ Matro imerchange (BW3)

Multi Storey Car Park (BW10)
Car parking (BW10)



Action Plan

Accessibility Vision

Swansea Bay - an accessible destination with improved public transport and
access through the area. The new Metro system with interchanges around the
bay, a robust new parking and signage strategy, and an extension to the land
train route will contribute towards the improvement of the public transport network
around the Bay and improve public access through the area. This, together with
the new pedestrian/cycle system will improve accessibility and create a more
vibrant destination.

BW9: Promenade / Cycling / Land Train

Create a continuous high quality waterfront experience with an extended
promenade linking all the destinations and developments along Swansea
Bay from the River Tawe to Mumbles Pier.

Promote the journey of the bay, encouraging walking, cycling, jogging and
skating.

Maximise opportunities for sitting, socialising, people watching and taking in
the views.

Consider the potential to widen the promenade between County Hall and St
Helen’s, at Southend Gardens and along the cliff approach to Mumbles Pier.

Provide dedicated cycling lanes as part of the promenade to minimise
user conflict. Identify links to the wide National Cycle Network through the
signage strategy (BW13) and at cycle hire centres.

Improve access across Oystermouth and Mumbles Road with enhanced
at grade crossings (road level) and a new high level lightweight bridge of
quality design.

Locate cycle hire and support facilities at County Hall, Sketty Lane,
Blackpill and Knab Rock and provide cycle racks and safe storage at key
destinations, car parks and attractions.

Extend the land train to run from Bracelet Bay in the West and to the West
Pier Maritime Quarter in the East. This will be made feasible through the
promenade widening noted above.

Introduce additional, environmentally friendly land trains, focused towards
an adult market, to encourage their use as part of the public transport
system. These would complement the existing child/family orientated trains
and the design could reflect the original Mumbles trains.

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE | o1

Sdd “SHed Aleyneg ‘epeuswold ajoqsej(;; ay) Buoje saum&e} aly ay1g

ssuue)

suap.eb pue sxhec] Buluuim piemy

'qoega éu], uo uny 6u!‘/(|; aly



Sdd ‘“OAN “iJed siiy ebeubis

81n0J ulel] pue| easuems Bunsixg

L
2k
5]
=.
o
<
c
3
=2
@
(2]
_'
=
L
=
|
=}
)
o
A
o)
Q
~

OJJ3|\ BASUBMG MaU 8U| 300y qBuY| ‘Iajem ay) Buissedoy

BW10: Beach / Water

Promote beach access for all, locating key drop off areas for senior and
disabled access, with platforms and adapted wheelchairs for access and use
on the beach.

Promote the beach for active use, designating children zone areas along the
beach for on beach play facilities and supporting active uses such as kite
boarding, land yachting and blokarting.

Promote access to the water from the northern and southern edges of

the bay, supporting larger boating activity around the marina, continued
watersports at Knab Rock and facilitating water taxis and recreation boat trips
between Mumbles Pier and the River Tawe.

Encourage safe use of the water through management of activities and
designation of uses to specific areas.

Formalise boat storage to improve use of available space and introduce a
new pricing strategy.

BW11: Improved Public Transport Network

Locate metro interchanges along the bay, encouraging mutli-modal bay
travel, providing ticket kiosks, timetable information and public conveniences.
Introduce dedicated metro routes between the city centre and County Hall.

Develop a new pricing strategy with on bus ticketing, rover tickets and muilti-
modal options.

BW12: Baywide Parking Strategy

Prepare a parking strategy, with a variable charging system.

Investigate the potential to provide a park and ride facility in the west and
additional car parking at St Helen’s and Mumbles. Increase parking provision
at St Helen’s, Sketty Lane, Blackpill, Oystermouth Square and Mumbles
Headland. Provide new car parks on the foreshore at Blackpill and on street
parking provision between Southend Gardens and Mumbles Pier.

BW13: Signage Strategy

Develop a Swansea Bay signage strategy. Provide electronic signage along
Oystermouth and Mumbles Roads, displaying public transport, car parking,
festival and event and water quality information.

Provide interactive sighage along the promenade with links to the
environment, education and health.

Investigate ways of incorporating signage with street furniture through action
BW6 to ensure environmental clutter is minimized.

Page 92



Action Plan

Quality Vision

Swansea Bay - the quality recreational destination in West Wales. An improved
range of visitor facilities along the bay, with food and drink, public art, lighting, toilets
and shower facilities, events space, facilities for boating activity and children’s play
facilities, together with information signs that celebrate the industrial heritage and
historical rail links between Mumbles and the City. Through improved maintenance
and management coordination, a high quality public realm will be enhanced.

BW14: Visitor Facilities

» Focus public conveniences at key arrival areas around the bay including
County Hall, St Helen’s car park, Victoria Park, Sketty Lane Adrenaline
Sports Centre, Blackpill Lido, Oystermouth Square, Knab Rock and
Mumbles Pier.

» Provide shower facilities at City Waterfront, St Helen’s, Sketty Lane
Adrenaline Centre, Black Pill Waterpark and Knab Rock.

+ Extend/enhance existing cafes, bars and restaurant facilities at County Hall;
Patti Pavilion; Blackpill Waterpark; Knab Rock and Mumbles Pier. Provide
new facilities that support both day and evening entertainment at City
Waterfront; Sketty Lane Adrenaline Sports Centre and Oystermouth Square.

» Kiosks should be supported at Victoria Park; the bottom of Brynmill Lane;
Westcross and Knab Rock.

BW15: Water Activity

*  Support continued water boating activity around Mumbles and the Marina
with increased facilities at Knab Rock and the Pier for water users.

* Improve and extend the slips at Southend Gardens and Knab Rock providing
supporting facilities for water users, including: public conveniences; shower
facilities; information points and safe storage provision.

BW16: Children’s Play

* Increase the provision of safe children’s play areas at Blackpill and Southend
Gardens, providing additional all weather facilities.

* Locate Kids Zones on the beach at County Hall and Blackpill providing
temporary and permanent entertainment.

BW17: Historic, cultural and nature links

+ Create a themed culture and heritage trail that extends the length of the bay.
Extend the trail through Castle Acre to a new visitor centre located within the
grounds of Oystermouth Castle.

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE K 93

Taedl

puejeaz maN ‘Aejd Jajep

500y qeuy| ‘Sanlioe) Bunsixg

BUO[®Jeg ‘SjULA® pue spods 10j 8deld  UBO0J}ID) Ipuy Mled ‘@oeds Jueng

BOsSUBMS ‘[BAILIRD



Bay wide facilities plan

I Narth

Victaria

Park

St Helens

County alF
Hall b

] D

k.

i

a8
3
P

3

el

Singleton Park
Clyne
Vallay Poal
Boating L;ke
1 .:IJ-.
Clyne Blackpil
Gardens
B EEE
£ ||| 2] P [(£]
West Cross
2@
(i) =
OysternButn Mumbles
Casi:

Knab Rock

<

it

S
L

{.--"""w..d :
s Hill Nature ™
.
L - #

T~

'cTo

P

¢ |

Mumbles Pier

o5

2@

P

®

Page 94

Ee==EEnEENER ke 3

Swansea

Fe  Point

A D
ROMEHN
C_P\‘-{:.LE ng'rE

City Waterfront

[o] D] & e

5B
B

! ﬂlhﬁ A& P

Infesrmation

Event spaces
Cafabar/rastaurant
Public conveniences
Shower facilites

All waalher play
Childran’s play
Beach Activity
Water aclivity
Mature

Heritage

Matro imerchange
Land train siop
Bicycle hire
Parking

Equipment hira
Water taxi

Boat trips



Action Plan

BW18: Establishing a bay management group

Develop a Bay Management Group to coordinate efforts, deliver the vision
and facilitate development throughout the bay.

Pool resources and knowledge, encouraging the continued involvement of
key stakeholder including user groups, community groups, environmental
protection organisations, Swansea Futures, Tourism Swansea and other
organisations that can help facilitate development throughout the bay.

Strengthen cross-departmental working to ensure the Bay Management
Group is effective . A coordination group should be established with
representatives from Planning and Economic Regeneration, Environment
and Conservation, Parks and the Environment, Tourism and Leisure,
Transport and Accessibility, Foreshore Management and Environment and
Health.

Establish an annual programme of meetings with statutory consultees,
including the Environment Agency and Countryside Council for Wales, to
discuss bay wide issues.

Maintain a continued dialogue with local communities and local businesses,
encouraging active involvement, innovation and creativity in the bay.

Ensure the on-going management and maintenance of Swansea Bay is
continued following the completion of development works.

Management of wind blown sand is to be coordinated by the Bay
Management Group.

BW19: Ensure the quality and sustainability of all development

Ensure that all development and initiatives are of a high quality, sustainable
design and accord with the principles and guidance set out on the Wales
Spatial Plan and Local Agenda 21, Planning Policy Wales Technical Advice
Notes, in particular TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk; TAN 5: Nature
Conservation and TAN 12: Design

City and County of Swansea to prepare development briefs for each of the
waterfront development areas.

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDE | 05

(2]
o
=
Q@
5
]
2
o
>
[72]
®
o
vy}
O
<

euojeoleg ‘Aejd yoeag

9|1sé3 yinowdysAQ Buneiga)

Aeg eu),"u! spods Jojejoadg

suapJes) auA|D ‘esuss ay) a1gINWINg



FUBAR AII2 J00PIN0 sy aoeds

Buiued 89 pus

S@SN JuNsE| |eMuapisay "sjUBRINESal 'sieg
‘saoyo Bupngy) "ezed juDupeiEm ay)
Bujpaspua "esn paxil S8 jed Je Walses
pue ied JED j8aNS UDXE B dofEABE

(2w ezeld Juospajep __a_.__u_

£ UCISSILULIGT Of [910Y Jole Byl
pue go7 jo Aped Bungom B ys|ge1s3
YIS JUOULIDIEM 3|GEMEA S|yl SEIN
Aqny o) 89S [S10H PoLUER SU) jo sped jo
juswdogasepay By} &joWod4

(zv) wewdojanap jm10H :E....u!

Apmis Anijaisea)

4B DpEULIOIY PUE BR|d JUCIUSIEM KD ay) yur)

anues A0 Byj oy

(2v) anuag Ano o) syur 8943 pue ueiysapad |

City Waterfront Concept Plan

wed oyui ino
[IFcls ©) BBy DALY WO BTN
uoljeanad anssed Jop saoeds yim
‘gaue Jpgnd aaaee Ue Sjeal
o} JleH Aunos jo oy v aoeds
wasuf Bupsixe au) ssusyus

(1) wed Ea._taﬁ..s

ued ases el sasusyaidwod @

10 uonanpagu Bupsolpoy sjeawsasnba Buysed
JED U] uononpas & vodn Juspuedap egq [ Sy
1BH funog Bulues wieg Jed 1sem o)

uo juawdaEnap jo USIINPOILE SU] JapISUaT)

{£2') ayig yuawdojasag u._En_un_

I

{9y} BuiuayyBiens apeuswosd

sdajs au) Wody ABME SNy
e12A2 aaow of By Aunod
oy u) apeuauwod uabensg

e

T o R Buipun e Ausdosd sepisuon

SROUB|UBALIOD
apgrd pue S0 mad g e
8 Laupjiuo wo Apeinaued pasnog)
‘lleH Aunog jo wo) u) Buoz
Ayanoe yoeaq Bupsixs oy dojasag -
(5v) yoeag

-

abipug dys syl pue
[FEH Ao usasieq ssuedosd

Vo= .......“.“.. f x...\ S 19 IUALLOUBYUS [BLISTXE SI0W0I

L | foy e se auez padeaspun

iy

..11

| oaew el sepowiLooy
pEUBLZUBILI QUIEH B BPIADLY

pUBAB(NOG 8L jO padse
[ENuUad B Ul wesis

pepaoud Busag samalas
aju) pajesodioon) SEale Rl
BALED PEIUCD PUE BRIE

L | uonaxa ygnd “Jako ‘ajea woyees

"upuaa AIOREI Ajue) pue saaDe
*AlRiy) EUUB0 MBU BPREU) Of 5T
BN

pue Gusuien) "uoREULo)U| 10) BURUad
& apiosd 0 |leH Aunes dn uadg

(1) anH feaming 8u8D 11D

sagunoddo Bussoun
e MAU it presepnog
UBQN |0 ucljEsuD

_n_.___ _.._._n__..u__._nu ﬁﬂz

i

e

e —— |

() JudWasuByU .__EEEL

k]
°
£
©
S
=)
S
<
g
©
°
s
>
0
Q
©
(9]
o
[
(e0]
=



Action Plan

4. ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS

4.1

City Waterfront is where city life meets the sea and the hustle and bustle of urban
living reacts with the sun, surf and sand of Swansea Bay. City Waterfront is where
the residents and visitors naturally cross Oystermouth Road to access an exciting
range of visitor facilities that spill out onto the promenade and beach. It is a place to
meet and be seen and to start a journey exploring the delights of the new Swansea
Bay.

City Waterfront

lled Aluno) Jo MalA |E!.JE)V

A1: County Hall Development: Open up County Hall to provide a welcoming
centre for information, learning and culture. The new Civic Centre will house a
new Central Library, archives and family history centre, seafront cafe, customer
contact centre and foyer and public exhibition area. The redevelopment could
include the rationalisation of the external areas between the wings of the
building.

Sdd ‘abeld sued

Enhance the grassed area in front of County Hall to create an attractive public park
area, which takes advantage of the spectacular views of the bay and provides a
range of spaces for passive recreation. Activities from the Civic Centre will spill
out into the park.

A2: City Waterfront Plaza Site: Create a high quality mixed use waterfront
development on Paxton Street car park and the eastern staff car park, as
advocated in the Swansea City Centre Strategic Framework. The development
will be focused around a City Waterfront Plaza on the promenade, which links
back to the city centre through a linear public route with active ground floor
uses. Where the linear route crosses Oystermouth Road, a new public space
will be created, which includes a metro interchange. The Waterfront Plaza will
be enlivened by the various activities and uses aimed at attracting city dwellers,
visitors and business users, which include: offices, bars, restaurants, residential
apartments, leisure uses and car parking.

Promote the redevelopment of part of the Marriot Hotel site to fully utilise this
valuable waterfront area. Establish a working party of the City and County of
Swansea and the Marriot Hotel to investigate development options for this area.

A3: Urban Boulevard: Create an urban boulevard along Oystermouth Road
with safe crossing opportunities for pedestrians and cyclists. Accommodate
a dedicated metro route within the landscape zone between West Way and
County Hall.

A4: Property Enhancement: Promote the external enhancement of properties
between County Hall and Saint Helen’s Road to create a unified attractive
place. Consider property grant funding.

1yBiu p-L-Jé Aep q],od Aoy Sd-d.‘esp(g asdwey)n ‘mé/\/\ $S01D

A5: Beach Activity and Visitor Facilities: Develop the existing beach activity
zone, focused towards children, with new visitor facilities, including public
conveniences and temporary kiosks.

yoesq AlD

A6: Promenade Straightening: Straighten the promenade in front of County Hall
to move the cycle route away from the steps and provide opportunity for the
extension of the land train route.

A7: Potential Development Site: Following the creation of the Civic Centre
cultural hub, review car parking requirements on the west car park, taking
account of green travel plan initiatives, to ascertain whether the area could be a

future development site.
IDE] ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS




St Helen’s Concept Plan

x/J
/ a3 soysiA
paacmul g sBusyoisiu) onBl  « \
Wied =
JED JUCIMNSIEM SIUBLUS PUB UEjeN
(¥a) sied 1eg #Eciui

L g -
spods auseuaspe Bueinoous \V [/

auoz fagoe yoeaq Bunsme
By o unsuedyn o abemosugy

Aagse yaeeg ||

(e Aunog 0] Wed Jed SusH 12
O] UD|SUSRE MBU annsuog

wi) speusiuosd

(z8) epreuawoid o) ucisua)xy

suoda Japisunn

(g8) 9Bpug dys

JO UDISUSIRD BATIN) B4 SIEPOLICIY
:n__..____..um ned mu ..._!._._nu_u:nﬂum o

§0 Ba1e pasueyuS Uim Bupped
1232 pasodord pue LaIpARY MEd

SMEA SILLAVELL PUE Ba68U]
afire Bujsixe anesay
sed juouyates o femajeb
SA[LNISIP B BlERT
weed Bugsma =

BOUBLUS PUE LS S
(e8) yed EuEE_E_

pue jusudojassp

Aipzey u&:ﬂm ey

u..:a._u E-_.: ﬁ \

g . PUE SIUMDPUTR| [UBABERU JBLI0 PUE |5
m.. APUnLULLIOSD JE30] BL) L LoHEYNSWo W
LA Jeug wewdopaap dypads ais e aedaly

Lo __ntm ._._!_.En_n..__un

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Action Plan

4.2 StHelen's

St Helen’s is where the Bay changes character from the urban to the landscape,
where space gives opportunities for both quiet reflection and a host of activities.
St Helen’s is a place to celebrate Swansea’s unique position on the waterfront,
with potential space for new visitor facilities and public entertainment.

+ B1: Development Brief: Prepare a site specific development brief in
consultation with the local community and other relevant landowners and
stakeholders.

+ B2: Promenade Widening: Consider the potential for widening the
promenade over the edge of the beach, from St Helen'’s car park to County
Hall, providing improved access to the beach and helping to eliminate user
conflict along the promenade. The extension will need to maintain access to
sewer inspection chambers.

+ B3: Waterfront Park: Enhance the existing foreshore park to create a
distinctive gateway to the Waterfront Park, see action BW1 above. A balance
will need to be achieved between preserving existing large trees, which lend
maturity and character to the area, and removing poor quality vegetation
to allow full advantage of the spectacular views available. Existing features
such as the cenotaph and other memorials would be retained.

* B4: Visitor Facilities and Car Park: Retain and enhance the waterfront car
park, with an improved at-grade crossing between the Patti Pavilion and the
Waterfront. Provide a new building at this location to house public toilets,
ticket booth, bus/metro shelter and cycle hire facilities. The public toilets will
replace those previously removed from the site of the McCarthy & Stone
development.

+ B5: Slip Bridge: The slip bridge historically was a major hub for accessing
the beach. However activity patterns have changed and the focus for land
and beach activities has moved away from this narrow stretch of promenade,
and will again re focus as a result of new development at St Helens.
Reinstatement of a bridge using the existing stepped supports, would require
significant infrastructural works to be fully accessible. However, there may be
scope to consider using one of the abutments as a kiosk facility for a leisure
related use subject to the proposal being commercially viable. The City and
County of Swansea will consider the long-term future of the Slip Bridge,
including the possible re-instatement of a bridge crossing on the present
abutments as part of the enhancement and development proposals for the St
Helen’s area.

IDE] ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS



Sketty Lane Concept Plan

15adaiu] Jnuing Eoads o 8

spods

auneuaspe Bufemoous auoz
Aanae yoeng Busxa aug)
Jo uoisuedxa i) abeinoous

(z2) Auanoy :uuﬁm

siEaEds

) apmpanags Buppmma pasey -
uoyE}s

puenBay) pus pny Job ‘saoe;
JEMGUS "BlaH0) ‘Y B1280 SR
Eja (jews Jequayen Bugesodioou
aua suods aujCuRIpY

(19) anuag spodg aujjeuaipy

& LR
saopus) afipa yoeeg -
SEBEIE UM -
uojieauoa) avssed Jo| seany -

Aymey ynd pue yig o
feydd aageubew) %

10f saunmjea) adeaspue -
%

gaue Anpd aunidinas s uspD -
SENAIIE) JOjSIA MEU UM RiEd -
(£2) #ed .:E__._zut

answ o eade u) pnd ypm ‘ebueyuain podsuei) -

adespu

Ayenb ybiy ybinosy) wewdo@aep sapsuas .
saoeds Aejs-Buny) pesealou) Bupioed
seed sea Bunsas ofimeuwe pue ambiuooey -
(12) yied 129 unm.i_:m

B

_ (o) sBujssoss apesd e pascsdu) _

Safrey
Jpob Azein pue aye Bugeog paacudiyy
(52) yied uoa)buig pasueyuz

2 =
= IIJ.-_-
e e

4

—— sBpe buas aeas pe unojpue -

eaue Aepd samdinos suaIpIyD
ST JUCIBIEA, MOU 0

(g£2) peay wioypue

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Action Plan

4.3 Sketty Lane

Sketty Lane is the recreational heart of the city, focused on the new Waterfront
Park, providing a wide range of sporting and recreational activities, with
adrenaline sports on the beach, boating, golfing and children’s play within the
park, all linked to the sporting centre of excellence.

+ C1: Adrenaline Sports Centre: Redevelop and enlarge visitor facilities in
Sketty Lane to provide a new Adrenaline Sport Centre overlooking the
beach, with improved car parking and beach access, including:

- Café/restaurant, toilets and shower facilities, equipment store, pitch and
putt golf hire, and niche retail.

Enlarge existing car park and introduce a transport interchange, with
dedicated pull in area for the metro, shelter and ticketing facilities.

The CCS will prepare planning guidance to identify planning, design and
environmental issues concerning the development of the site.

+ (C2: Beach Activity: Encourage a range of beach activities including kite
surfing and wind surfing and linking to the beach at St Helen’s.

The proposed development and activities will need to fully consider
environmental issues, and demonstrate no significant effect on the SSSI.

» C3: Waterfront Park: Provide a Waterfront Park which is a continuation of
the park described in action B4 above. The quality and ideas for the park
are described under action BW1 above. The park will provide a range of
facilities:

- achildren’s sculpture play area, with a series of landscape features for
non prescriptive imaginative play;

- animproved trim trail providing fun physical activity for adults and
children of all abilities;

- apitch and putt facility, albeit a reduced size;

- araised viewing structure and space for spectators in front of the
Adrenaline Sports Centre; and

- areas for passive recreation including mown grass areas, picknicking
areas and beach edge terraces.

» C4: Pedestrian Crossing Facilities: Enhance the at grade (ground level)
pedestrian and cyclist crossing facilities on Oystermouth Road, particularly
at Sketty Lane junction to improve pedestrian and cycle access from the
University and boating lake to the waterfront.

+ Cb5: Boating Lake: Enhance the boating lake activity areas, including
facilities supporting the boating lake and the crazy golf area.

Page ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS

LA

BUO|20IEG ‘BUISNOY BPISISIEA

saouewJlopad J0opINo ‘sulie)

" oy Ausienun

.|olsug ® ‘iunuefuﬁeuu ayl




Blackpill Concept Plan

1SDIBIU} JUDIDS [EDadS jo BIS

Burnpue)d (euusogu) s soussesdde L) i
[EIMEU ‘MINoruis Bdenspue) eaounsg . \.
I sed Unipaiem Jesl) Bunse sdueyus -
pag pue saqe; ouad Anuey . (za) wied Juoipaep i f
sabe
Ile o) yed By jo [eadde uapip - _____._r
syl pue susuno) ‘saps 2y AP
BuipnEaLy 'SaimEs) anjoesau| @
Ul AJAGOR JBIEM jO STUOZ iy
U JojsiA ey 2 i) -
puE Jujod |B20) Se op)| pastudw] - . :
(1) sediajep s,usipliud \A
SEI||DE] JBMOUS PUE SSIUBLBALCD D|gnd « \ ki L
sanoey Buem pig Py A——21 i
s uewdinba pue oy apiD - il H. £1 e et S i o e < SRR AR S B
Aeyd Joopu| - A
JusLIdoiaAED PEIEJLSLD AlueS . AW e
Hrﬂu Sa{|1oe) JOUSIA MaN SHII0R) JDUIERM — \ u
12 [EUOPpE M e |
sowwesbioud puoeanpg - | | 810 SUSIRIYD pascsdw) i
spieog uonewwoyy) « || (@) Aeld S,uaipliy
sanuoe) Guymem pig pascudi) !
(1) anuag asmey
Iiei2erg 18 [eae o) sjeubls afpug oyl .
Aaqep aud|] pue juoupEies
By usamiaqg Syul| sk pue uesapad
panosdun ynw oBpog wbesuBymeny | | e | i 4
(£a) eBpug wBlamybiy Tttty

Hicsoeg 18 yed weg feyg Buoyepiy
PUE YRg 0} D15 YSIGEISS O] poap «
Buiyied Jen

Buissosa apesb je panosdw |

Aeg jo smaia dn usdy -

Lzeaq o) ssaoe pascidl) -
Ny ais pue uewsapad

JO swEuBLyUS apm AEg -

(1q) epeuawosd pascidwy |-

| __”_:m“_____m__.m__m______m_____.____” _

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Action Plan

4.4 Blackpill

Blackpill is a place for fun and family entertainment, based on an expanded water
park play area with a wide range of support facilities, linked to the surrounding
assets of the Clyne Valley, Clyne Gardens and the bird life on the foreshore.
Improved bus and car parking opens up Blackpill as the first stop on the Mumbles
experience.

éuej /I(.uaxs 10 N\em |eusy

D1 Waterpark / Visitor Facilities: Expand and improve the children’s waterpark
with new features to raise the profile of Blackpill. Provide different zones of
water activity including slides, fountains and jets of water to extend the appeal of
the park to all age groups and provide a year round attraction, with its use as a
winter skating rink.

Provide new visitor facilities to include a family orientated development with
opportunity for indoor play; cycle hire; equipment store and public conveniences
and shower facilities.

euojeoleg ‘Aeid yoeag

Provide a new nature centre building with improved bird watching facilities,
planting and habitat creation works, and information boards. Promote
educational programmes drawing on links with the sea, SSSI and Clyne Valley.

D2: Waterfront Park: Continue the Waterfront Park through Blackpill (refer to
actions C3 and BW1). Key features of the park specific to Blackpill are:

+ Removal of poor quality vegetation to allow full advantage of spectacular
views. Areas of poor quality will be subject to detailed assessment.

ainjes] wiojpue]

» Creation of a play landscape with series of landscape features for non
prescriptive, imaginative play adjacent to the waterpark to help relieve the
demand at busy times.

+ Creation of spaces for casual and passive recreation including picnicking
areas and beach edge terraces.

* Incorporation and enhancement of the skateboard park as part of the
Waterfront Park.

* Celebration of the history of the Mumbles Train as a feature in the
Waterfront Park, and a key marker along the bay wide culture, heritage and
nature trail.

sayoeaq ay) Uo AJIAIOY

D3: Lightweight Bridge: Construct a high quality, visually exciting lightweight
bridge over the dual carriageway, improving pedestrian and cycle links between
the waterfront and Clyne Valley.

« Create an iconic feature in the design of the new pedestrian/cycle bridge
that signal the start of Gower.

D4: Waterfront Car Park: Provide a new car park for the Waterpark, marking the
arrival at Blackpill. Reconfigure the existing land side car park, providing for
health club parking.

D5: Beach Activity: Promote beach activities, encouraging kite flying on the
beach, with displays and competitions featuring in the Bay Festival of Light and
Colour.

(' .
ADE | ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS



Oystermouth Concept Plan

suapies) puUsLInGS pue
PECY LOJWON LDDMIEE

yoeag JeA0 wuopend
jo ofangsuen .
(53) speuawold

Buried Jed oA Jamon

aanpoud [ED0] J0) 184EW JUBURLLSH

STEN |EUNYND pue

[Equapisa ueinelsay ‘ajes Bupaoud juswdo@sap
SN PAXILL IO X0 oM | Jeuuo) [0 juawsda)aaapay
(3) Buipping jjoA)L Jaun0y

sjusLsEandLLE WiER SFONA .

Gupyed 1oauis-u0 jo LOGESEUCIEY -

peoy uowap BuoE sapadoud jO UOREIOISEY .
(z3) peoy uomay

L ] n 4

swaln feq jo ebeuespe Buye;
wuogied Guima 8 ajear of apeuawosd of uolsusng .«
SEEM |0 X/ SProu) o) juswdoeasg .
(13) asenbg yinounashp

_ (13) aienbs Buissoa pasueyuy A_r

Y \ i
L \
auenbg yinouusisAn jo ypou yied sed Aejs poys mep .

Kppoey aBueymisiu) aljay Jo) uoABlg
(13) ontap

Aenb Jaluso) v yed Jed fes-Buo| mey -
(93) sped sen

1 “__, [P} @y pue aumeu ‘aBejuay

} apis Aeg smau yhnouy) peoy sjgungy

| UbDH) BISED) O] SYul| sse00e ascudur .

__ Ape) sopsih may

] Bumas ajjsen GnowsssAo Juswaoueysy -
Vs _ (#3) apsed yinouussAp
| | ~ N
__....[.\_ _\ ,

e —
—
sabalul HNUMog Eosds jo 85 w..x\ ././,

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Action Plan

4.5 Mumbles

Mumbles is a vibrant seaside resort with an attractive retail area and a wide range
of visitor facilities linked to a well designed and managed esplanade that is focused
on the dramatic panoramic views of Swansea Bay and the wide range of water
activities.

* E1: Oystermouth Square Development: Develop Oystermouth Square for a
range of uses which may include retail on ground or ground and first floors,
professional and financial services, food and drink outlets, gallery/display
areas, hotel, function suite, residential on upper floors only, and provide an
extension to the promenade to create enhanced opportunities for viewing the
bay.

lId0.Ig JO MaIA [BLBY

* E2: Newton Road Enhancement: Strengthen the boutique and niche market
retail offer of Newton Road, by property improvements, rationalisation of car
parking and improved public realm works.

» E3: Tivoli Block Development: Commission a feasibility study to review the
role of the block south east of Oystermouth car park , which includes the Tivoli
building, to provide a mixed-use development with lower level car parking.
Create a new square within the scheme to connect to the waterfront and
accommodate various activities including the local produce market, establishing
greater links between the retail centre and waterfront. Create active uses at
ground floor level, encouraging the location of cafes, restaurants and cultural
uses.

Sdd ‘UIBeluno4 aJAno

» E4: Visitor Facilities / Amenity: Provide improved visitor facilities at Knab
Rock, with new building to house public conveniences, showers, cycle hire
and kiosks, supporting the continued presence of Verdi’s attraction and the
opportunity for future enhancement works to Verdis’ building.

Provide a new visitor facility building within an enhanced setting of Oystermouth
Castle. Strengthen the links between Mumbles Road and Oystermouth Castle
and link with a baywide heritage, nature and cultural trail (see action BW16).

Sc.ld ‘ISANOJUBA ‘NJBed [IAURISD)

Provide amenity areas including a new all weather children’s play facility in
Southend Gardens, with improved visitor and family facilities including public
conveniences.

* E5: Promenade: Create a wider linear promenade route between Southend
Gardens and Knab Rock, with an extension of the promenade over the beach.
Commission a study to review the rationalisation of on street parking, access,
roads, facilities and boat storage, whilst retaining green space.

» EG6: Car Parking Strategy: As part of the baywide car parking strategy (see
action BW10 above), introduce

- A metro/bus stop facility north of Oystermouth Square, with short stay car
parking provision;

- On-street car parking along Newton Road with 20 minute limit and Mumbles
Road, in front of bowling green; and,

- On-street car parking between Southend Gardens and Knab Rock, and the
tennis courts and bowling green, with 1 hour limit; and

- Along stay multi-storey car park within the Quarry car park. This would need
to be sensitively designed to respect the geological interest of the cliff face
(SSSI) and residential amenity.

“Keyd JojeA\  UBOIIN BIPUY ‘BSUSS BU} SJBINWNHS

Page ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS



Action Plan

Market Appraisal

Travelling west along Swansea Bay, as you near Oystermouth Square, the
experience changes from broad Avenue along the seafront to a more compact
seaside environment. Newton Road rising from the seafront provides an opportunity
for niche shopping and a visit to the castle. Oystermouth Square development as
proposed will enhance the experience, particularly if as a knock on effect it brings
about the redevelopment of the Tivoli and the creation of a new market square and
event space. In a similar approach to Oystermouth Square, we would suggest that
a development brief is prepared for the area from the Tivoli through to the bowling
green. The development brief should be agreed in conjunction with relevant land
owners and the delivery mechanism agreed in principle to include predetermined
public realm benefits etc.

In order to sustain activity along Newton Road and the proposed Oystermouth
Square development and potential ancillary development, there is inadequate car
parking in this part of the Mumbles. Increased parking should be provided and
rates should be geared to enable short-term visits to the shops as well as more
prolonged visits.

Over the last few years, the range of shops, cafes and restaurants around Newton
Road have developed into popular destinations for local residents, with the offer of
the area significantly changing. This is also helping to change wider perceptions
of the area and attract a different customer base to the area. The proposals to
further enhance the public realm and the changing perceptions of the area will
help to attract further high quality restaurants and bars, building on the success of
nearby Verdi’'s. The provision of high quality bars and restaurants in the area will
help to capture the spend of visiting families and the population in the area. The
development at Oystermouth Square will add a new dimension to the offer at this
location. The development will provide retail units with street frontage and space
for bars, cafes and restaurants to enjoy piazza and waterfront aspects.

In addition to the range of bars, cafes and restaurants improving over the last few
years, so has the retail offer of Newton Road. A number of specialist boutique
shops exist in the area, including units relating to activity sports. Activity related
holidays and days trips are forecast to continue to increase in the future. The
increased provision of niche shops related to these will help to increase visitor
spending in the area. The general public realm improvements in the area and
wider Bay improvements combined with the forecast increase in activity related
holidays and day trips will help to support more niche retailers in this area, further

strengthening the Bay’s overall offer.

Page 106

Sd.d ‘suspJes) |eoluejog ‘Ukpjoolg

19)4ew aonpoud |80



Southend Gardens and Knab Rock Concept Plan Masterplan

3

ggﬁ
g5t
gt
Etdz
uﬂ
zE%g
,:EE
>

3
=4 Eg
e E —-ggg
- £ (252
7 .
= o IRL=
: s
| [58
3 — | £|[E3||3:
o = — o o |
g ja,_ I
SEHE |82||2
IR ILE 7
2 A
[ '
Eu.Eg
5
:
Tl i B
LA sgg 1Bl
832
Tl
@ £
Em
<l

INTRODUCTION VISION

ACTION PLAN: BAYWIDER ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS

IMPLEMENTATION



Mumbles Pier Concept Plan

m juswdoaaap sme aj Hu| |[2as Jaddn sap)
punoie apeuawtsd pusxg = | | senpoe) Gunjed Jea panoudiy

& 1 - i i
Yoeeq S 0] S5000e pasadw wawdsjarap ,__N\-..% Y ,/ o \w__
.n..\ g A R e

apeuawog

(vd) op d (£4) yed se S _.

__,._ S8 aeweyalses pue yied L
B Jes feg eEoesg Jo @0l esjubosay .
(gd) Aeg jojeorag | —
L o 5
& ‘ R
yhueis [enads Jo g/ [

sjans) saddn

1B VOB POUALDD0E JONSIA S0 Aunpodds

jans| jooy punob e

SEST JURINEISA] ‘I 'ajEd Ylim ‘asn paxu
Joj Buiping gy Biw seuso) dopanepey =
(1d) awdojaaspas qniojyBiu seuuog

R 7 ‘BAIBSEY BUNEN (BH SB|qWngy o}
L@ s squl| uayiBuans o) SpROG LOfELLLU|
K] | \ pue afeub|s voneuuniu pasoidu)

(g4} ansesay aumep |14 sajquingy

sBuppam pue saued

‘suopquyxs oy soeds anuas e Bupwosd

aumanns yiamyty mau jo vogangsuas

UCDES JUOLI8]EM

AEQ EISUBMS B SB 10€ O anjongs si

Jo v pue Jeid Byl Jo LoesEy
(z4) uopescisey Jaid

Jamosy pue S4iE) pUB Sa98) Se yans sjuaas Lerodia) == e

WnpEs Aear] 'L YS Bupeny Joj yoeudde o e aoeds joasn - by e
8yl 0] 5du) 10 Y Jaies I DY) PUE SDILINGY LMD SHUTY \ ) —r——
aufi jo asn smemb ebrinoauy | | @ecudus o) speuswosd o) uosUSRE MEN - e S = | ,

ﬂn_hu. hsﬂ; .-”.w"—.v EﬂEQUF—ﬂ—,—F—W ‘“ﬂﬂ.ﬂ:—ﬂi " .... = .,..-..w-.-v..u.nn...\...
.._ L = -
\
fiayes Jajem o SE1oWold pUB UOGIEGIE JORSIA JUBLUCOBASD WOEPOULLIOXIE ,
S8 Ajjr2e) yaune| NG med uodn melg ) AEpiioy mau J0 LOGSNPoULE Solwald - yuoy
(z4) NNy (14) wawdopasp man N _

SBS CCSupdate Aug08.indd



Action Plan

46 Mumbles Pier

Mumbles Pier - the traditional family seaside attraction at the end of
Swansea Bay, providing beach, pier and water activities supported by visitor
accommodation, cafes, amusements, restaurants and bars.

F1: Redevelopment Sites: Encourage the redevelopment of the former
nightclub building into a development of up to five or six storeys, exploiting
the southerly aspect with cafe, bar and restaurant uses at ground floor level
and potential for visitor accommodation above. The new building could
provide a focal feature to complement the pier. However the height of the
building in relation to the cliff is a sensitive issue and this would need to be
subject to a detailed visual appraisal and environmental impact assessement.

Provide a new public area overlooking the beach and allow the cafe to
provide outside sitting areas.

Promote the external enhancement of the existing amusement building.

Promote the introduction of development on the pier approach to provide
holiday accommodation with integral parking at ground level.

F2: Pier Restoration: Promote the restoration of the pier and the construction
of a lightweight tensile structure at the end of the pier and along the walkway
to provide a hire venue for exhibitions, events, parties and weddings.

Support the continued presence of the RNLI and encourage the
redevelopment of the existing slipway and boat hall to support future
requirements. Encourage the provision of training facilities and visitor access.

F3: Car Park: Provide improved long stay car parking facilities on the
headland above the pier, with a possible link to the upper storeys of the new
development (F1).

F4: Promenade Enhancement: Consider widening the promenade to improve
accessibility between Mumbles and the pier. Promote the cliff approach to the
pier as a temporary space for fairs and fetes. Extend the promenade around
the cliff, providing improved access to the beach.

F5: Bracelet Bay / Nature Reserve: Improve links to Mumbles Hill Nature
Reserve through signage, footpath improvement works and information
boards.

Recognise the role of Bracelet Bay car park and Castellemare as a
destination, particularly for group travel visits, and promote enhancement of
this area. The area could provide a final destination and turning area for the
metro.

Page ACTION PLAN: DESTINATIONS

' Bunybi eAnoeyg  Sdd ‘1994is ayy Bunelioosp sbe|4

181d S8|qUINIA ‘M3IA [elIaY

pajeulwN||l Jold WINg)es



BW1 Waterfront Park .
BW2 Landmark Features / Views

BW3 Natural Environment

BW4 Beach Quality

BW5 Flooding .
BW6 Public Realm Strategy

BW7 Events

BW8 Lighting Strategy

BW9 Promenade / Cycling / Land train

BW10 | Beach / Water

BW11 | Public Transport .
BW12 | Car Parking Strategy .
BW13 | Signage Strategy

BW14 | Visitor Facilities

BW15 | Water Activity

BW16 | Children’s Play

BW17 | Historic / Cultural / Nature

BW18 | Bay Management .
BW19 | Quality and Sustainability .
A1 County Hall Development

A2 City Waterfront Plaza .
A3 Urban Boulevard

A4 Property Enhancement

A5 Beach Activity / Visitor Facilities

A6 Promenade Straightening

A7 Potential Property Development

B1 Redevelopment Sites .
B2 Promenade Widening

B3 Waterfront Park .
B4 Visitor Facilities and Car Park

B6 Slip Bridge

C1 Adrenaline Sports Centre

Cc2 Beach Activity

C3 Waterfront Park .
C4 Pedestrian Crossing Facilities

C5 Boating Lake

D1 Waterpark / Visitor Facilities .
D2 Waterfront Park .
D3 Lightweight Bridge

D4 Waterfront Car Park .
D5 Park and Ride

D6 Beach Activity

E1 Oystermouth Square Development .
E2 Newton Road Enhancement

E3 Tivoli Block Development .
E4 Visitor Facilities / Amenity

ES Promenade

E6 Car Parking Strategy .
F1 Redevelopment Sites

F2 Pier Restoration .
F3 Car Park

F4 Promenade Enhancement

F5 Bracelet Bay / Nature Reserve

Page 110




Action Plan

5. IMPLEMENTATION

5.1 Programme

The development programme opposite shows

when each of the actions should be developed

and implemented over the next 15 years. The
implementation of this programme will be dictated

by the availability of funding, the interest of private
developers and the outcome of detailed assessments
required to ascertain whether certain actions are
feasible, such as an environmental appraisal, a flood
consequences assessment and a traffic appraisal.

Each action has been given a priority according to the
following:

» Short term: implementation is anticipated in 1 to 3
years time.

*  Medium term: implementation is anticipated in 3
to 5 years time.

* Long term: implementation is anticipated in 5 to
15 years. In addition, a number of actions have
been identified as priority projects.

In addition, a number of actions have been identified
as priority projects.

Page 111

5.2 Delivery and Implementation Plan

The separate Delivery and Implementation Plan report
provides details on the implementation of the various
actions.

Ajjeas e uoisi) Aeg easuemsg Bupep

IMPLEMENTATION



6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We would like to thank all those who took part in the
meetings, workshops and discussions that have led to
the preparation of this report.

Matt Clifton
Frances Jenkins
Huw Jones

Phil Holmes
Gail Evans
Dave Williams
Elfed Roberts
Huw Mowbray

Gordon Lewis
Catrin Oliver

Lee Morris
Gillian Wulff
Daniel Hodgkiss
Leighton Roberts
John Roe

Peter Marsden
Paul Thomas

Darren Parker
Zoe Abberley
Gareth Jervis
Stuart Hardisty

Julian Atkins-CCS Environment and Conservation
Deb Hill - CCS Environment and Conservation
Jeff Saywell — CCS Landscape Architect

S Sampson —Slip Bridge Preservation Society
Bryan Evans — Oystermouth Square developer
Laurence Bailey — Former leader CCS

John Bollom — Mumbles Pier

Terry Scales — Mumbles Development Trust

Jo Coulson — Mumbles Development Trust

David Benson — University Property Department
David Whitehead - CCS Transport

Michael Whitticker - CCS Transport

Iwan Davies — Director of Leisure

Meirion Howells —Rugby and Cricket Ground
Huw Morgan - CCS Environemnt and Health
Sam Taylor - CCS Environemnt and Health

Gail Evans
Frances Jenkins
David Williams
Matt Clifton

Phil Holmes
Huw Jones
Fiona Rees
Brendan Campbell
Cheryl Philpott
David Benson
David Gill

David Whitehead
Elfed Roberts
Gareth Sullivan
Huw Jones

lan Beynon

Joan Peters
Julian Atkins
Lilian Pritchard
Rob Speht

Rob Wachowski
Roger Beynon
Steve Marshall
Stuart Rice

Mike Cunningham
Terry Scales

Tim Claypole
Mark Child
Jayne Woodman
Des Thomas
Gerald Clement
Beth Winkley
Rene Kinzett
Rhiannon Deverux
Jane Lamnena

Page 112

Deb Hill

Huw Rees
June Stanton
Tony Lloyd
Claire Waller
Peter May
Barbara Hynes
Alan Lloyd
Erika Kirchner
David Philips
Alan Robinson
Betsan Cadwell
Cheryl Philpott
Sheena Williams
Mike Hollyman
Sue Butler
Eileen Walters
Cllr Pritchard
Elizabeth May
Mark Durdin
Rhodri Davies
Tahara Idris
Yvonne Jardin
Siwan Thomas
Elinor Evans
Graham King
Geoff Hayden
Eirwen Harry
Eileen Walton
Sam Sampson
Janina Henley
Steven Osborne
Alun Jones



Agenda Item 10
(&
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

BENSS e

Report of the Convener

Development & Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel — 8 March 2022

Annual Work Plan Review

Purpose: As the municipal year ends, it is good practice to reflect on

the Panel's work, experience, and effectiveness.

Content: A summary of the year’s activities and achievements is
provided.

Councillors are e Reflect on the year’s work; and

being asked to: e Share ideas to improve the effectiveness of scrutiny

Lead Councillor:  Councillor Jeff Jones, Convener of the Development &

Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel

Lead Officer & Brij Madahar, Scrutiny Officer

Report Author: E-mail: brij.madahar@swansea.gov.uk
1. Background
1.1  As this is the final meeting of this municipal year, the Panel is invited to

1.2

1.3

2.1

reflect on the year’s scrutiny work, experience and effectiveness. Any
ideas that will improve the effectiveness of the scrutiny of Development &
Regeneration, and scrutiny generally, are welcome.

To aid Panel members, a summary of the year’s work is attached.
Some of the questions the Panel may want to consider:

Have things worked well within the Panel over the past year?

Has the Panel’s work focused on the right things?

What, if anything, could be done better?

What have we learnt that will help us to improve and develop future
scrutiny?

Panel Overview

The Development & Regeneration Scrutiny Performance Panel has been
responsible for ongoing monitoring of Council performance in relation to
development and regeneration, including the ‘health’ of the city centre,
wider economic development across Swansea, and discussion about
progress on the Swansea Bay City Deal.

Page 113



mailto:brij.madahar@swansea.gov.uk

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

The Panel has a membership of 15 councillors. Attendance levels at
meetings has been a very healthy 88% (i.e., on average 13 out of 15
members attending every meeting).

In accordance with the agreed Scrutiny Work Programme, the Panel has
met every two months. During the 2021/22 municipal year, five meetings
were held on 1 July, 7 September, 2 November, 25 January and 8 March.
Meeting discussions have regularly been reported on by the local press,
indicating the Panel has been focussed on issues of public interest.

To support regular monitoring of key development and regeneration
activity the Panel has received the ‘Project Update Dashboard Report’
report at each meeting, providing overview of all projects and assessment
of progress, highlighting, for example, notable achievements, relevant
risks, any major issues /delays, etc. This provides a regular ‘health check’
on development and regeneration activity to facilitate challenge by the
Panel. The Panel has then, where necessary, drilled down on specific
work, to provide a more in-depth level of scrutiny. This has included
discussion over the past year, on: local City Deal projects; the Swansea
Arena development (this included site visit in October 2021); City Centre
Travel Plan; Swansea Business Improvement District; Foreshore
Developments; and the South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery
Plan.

The Panel has written to relevant Cabinet Members, to convey its views
including suggested action, arising from meeting discussions. Letters, and
responses where requested, were reported back to the Panel for
comments and discussion as necessary.

Future Scrutiny Work Programme

Some specific development and regeneration topics have been identified
that it has not been possible to consider in the available time and may be
appropriate to carry forward into future work plan.

The continuation of a Development & Regeneration Scrutiny Performance
Panel, or otherwise other arrangement, will be a matter for Councillors in
the new Council year, following the Council elections in May.

Background Papers: None

Appendices:

Appendix 1 - Completed Work Plan 2021-2022

Page 114



Appendix 1

Development and Regeneration Scrutiny Performance

Panel
Completed Work Plan 2021-22

Meeting 1

Thursday 1%t
July

. Confirmation of Panel Convener

. Dashboard Report

Phil Holmes — Head of Planning and City Regeneration
Huw Mowbray - Property Development Manager

. Annual Review of Work Plan 2020-21 and Draft Work Plan

2021-22

. Swansea University: Update on City Deal Investment

Meeting 2 Professor Steve Wilks — Swansea University Provost
Tuesday 7% . Dashboard Report
September Cllr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism
Phil Holmes — Head of Planning and City Regeneration
Huw Mowbray - Property Development Manager
Arena Site Group tours of the Arena led by Lee Richards, City Centre Team
Visits Leader (Development & Physical Regeneration)

4 - 11 October

Meeting 3

Tuesday 2
November

. City Centre Travel Plan update

Clir Mark Thomas — Cabinet Member for Environment
Enhancement & Infrastructure Management

Stuart Davies — Head of Highways and Transportation
Mark Thomas - Group Leader Traffic & Highway Network
Management

Matt Bowyer - Principal Telematics Engineer

. Dashboard Report

Cllr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism
Phil Holmes — Head of Planning and City Regeneration

Huw Mowbray - Development and Physical Regeneration Strategic

Manager

Page 115




Meeting 4 . Swansea Business Improvement District (BID)
Russell Greenslade - Chief Executive, Swansea BID
Tuesday 25%
January . Foreshore Developments
ClIr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism
Clir David Hopkins - Cabinet Member for Delivery & Operations
Geoff Bacon — Head of Property Services
. Project Update Report (for Information only)
Meeting 5 . South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan
Tuesday 8t Cllr Rob Stewart — Cabinet Member for Economy, Finance &
March Strategy

Clir Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism

Phil Holmes - Head of Planning and City Regeneration

Clare James — Economic Development Manager

. Project Update Report

Cllr Robert Francis-Davies — Cabinet Member for Investment,
Regeneration & Tourism

Phil Holmes — Head of Planning and City Regeneration

Huw Mowbray - Development and Physical Regeneration Strategic
Manager

Impact of Brexit on Rural Development Programme and

Funding Update (Post 2023) — For information only

To be scheduled (inclusive of suggestions from Work Planning Conference 2020)

Destination Management Plan / Tourism & Leisure

Tidal Lagoon / Blue Eden

Relocation of Council depots

Auditor General for Wales Review of Town Centre Regeneration
Historic / Listed Buildings

Foreshore Developments

Page 116




	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
	Minutes

	6 South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan
	06A - Appendix A Regional Economic Delivery Plan Final
	06B - Appendix B IIA_screening_form_REDP

	7 Project Update Report
	07A - Regeneration Project Update Report

	8 Impact of Brexit on Rural Development Programme and Funding Update (Post 2023)
	9 Letters
	09Aii - Cabinet Member Response
	09Aiii - CM Response Appendix - Swansea_Bay_Strategy_Action_Plan

	10 Annual Work Plan Review

